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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B R A &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FallaR

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_F_=F=Z/F=+—HIFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
REVENUE = 1N 5 4,051,107 3,668,371
Cost of sales fHE A (3,295,189) (3,018,152)
Gross profit EF 755,918 650,219
Other income and gains, net HEMBRARIKE 558 5 22,722 20,738
Selling and distribution expenses #HE& RN HEAX (34,189) (30,323)
Administrative expenses THAX (294,840) (271,301)
Other operating expenses HEERX (28,536) (267)
Finance costs BB K 6 (21,631) (5,128)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 72 2 A 7 399,444 363,938
Income tax expense FiemixX 10 (98,501) (81,357)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEM 300,943 282,581
Attributable to: FE1h -
Owners of the Company P N/NSIEZE SN 292,639 274,633
Non-controlling interests EEEEEED 8,304 7,948
300,943 282,581
EARNINGS PER SHARE AARBEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EiaESRET
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic E=9/N HK54.8 cents HK51.5 cents
54.87 1l 515581
Diluted 3 HK54.8 cents HK51.5 cents
54.87& 1l 515581
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GoEEBER

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_E_=F-HFA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—B-= s F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET THET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 300,943 282,581
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hih2mkiE (ZH)
(EXPENSE)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REBHBEARUEFIEE
that will not be reclassified to profit or EoWEtemkE
loss in subsequent periods: (XH) -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit EREEANGEZEE
plans Wi (EB1E) (3,467) 7,788
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REZPETEREERIERE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss HBENEMESEKZE
in subsequent periods: (ZH)
Exchange differences on translation of MEBNEBZERELE
foreign operations (102,047) 53,513
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ FEHMLEmKE (ZH)
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR, (BHIRRRE)
NET OF TAX (105,514) 61,301
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FELEKNEEE
FOR THE YEAR 195,429 343,882
Attributable to: 1S -
Owners of the Company Vi N/NETEZ Z N 190,675 334,248
Non-controlling interests =R EED 4,754 9,634
195,429 343,882
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FaMEBERRR

31 March 2023
¥ =FZ/F=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= B F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 13 998,270 976,237
Right-of-use assets ERBEE 14(a) 263,657 267,972
Goodwill S 16 104,076 104,076
Intangible assets BREESE 17 4,937 7,758
Deposits & 15 41,611 48,236
Total non-current assets ERBEERME 1,412,551 1,404,279
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories 7E 18 677,184 728,962
Accounts receivable & I B 3R 19 345,113 393,843
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfIFRIE - & & M EH M fE UK
receivables IE 15 123,369 138,790
Tax recoverable ] W [E] # 18 — 3,070
Restricted bank balance 52 PRl 3R 17 45 8% 20 1,143 617
Cash and bank balances R RIRITHER 20 515,387 455,841
Total current assets MENEEMHEE 1,662,196 1,721,123
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Accounts payable & 1 BR 3R 21 375,744 299,634
Accrued liabilities and other FE&T & & Kk E Ath & ;B
payables 23 218,014 292,280
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it EEITE R 24 544,323 648,557
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 10,456 9,713
Tax payable F& {1+ 1R 18 93,396 78,246
Total current liabilities nBaERE 1,241,933 1,328,430
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 420,263 392,693
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ZEEMAENBRREB&E
LIABILITIES 1,832,814 1,796,972
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Pension scheme obligation B & 518 &R 25 22,113 19,861
Interest-bearing bank borrowings it B IRITE K 24 78,500 —
Lease liabilities HEAR 14(b) 1,347 12,098
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE 26 48,608 43,324
Total non-current liabilities ERBAEBEEE 150,568 75,283
Net assets BEFE 1,682,246 1,721,689




EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

HEMBRAR(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

2023 2022

B =4F —_E®B_F

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Ffs 5% FET FET

EQUITY BXE

Equity attributable to owners AR FEE AEGLIEL
of the Company

Issued capital ERITERA 27 5,338 5,338

Reserves #E 28 1,624,114 1,668,311
1,629,452 1,673,649

Non-controlling interests R RER 52,794 48,040

Total equity BEAREE 1,682,246 1,721,689

CHUNG YUK SING CHEN HSIAO YING

H#HEH BRI/

Director Director

EE EFE
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERREYR

Year ended 31 March 2023

BE_E_ZF=-F=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYNGE SN
Share Statutory  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium Capital surplus  fluctuation  Retained controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
B&fT (3] BE EX FER
B&* HER EARE  BREE  RBRE SR 4 RRER EH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
(Note 28)  (Note 28)
(ites)  (Ma28)
At 1 April 2021 RZIB--£NB-H 5,320 566,314 (229) 89,860 40,826 810576 1,512,667 38406 1,551,073
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - 274,633 274,633 7,948 282,581
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEMLANE
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans RERAGAZEENE - - - - - 7,788 7,788 - 7,788
Exchange differences on translation of REBMEBZERER
foreign operations - - - - 51,827 - 51,827 1,686 535613
Total comprehensive income for the year FELANEAE - - - - 51827 282421 334248 9634 343,882
Issue of shares Bkt 27 18 7,596 - - - - 7614 - 7614
Transfer to reserve BRZHE - - - 15,010 - 15,010) - - -
Final 2021 dividend “RT-ERERE 1 - - - - - (63,840) (63,840) - (63,840)
Interim 2022 dividend ZBIIERHRE 11 - - - - — (17,0400 (117,040 — (17,040
At 31 March 2022 RIBZZEZRZ+-H 5338 573,910* (229 104,870 92,653* 897,107 1,673,649 48,040 1,721,689
At 1 April 2022 RZBZ_£MA-H 5,338 573910 (229) 104,870 92,653 897,107 1,673,649 48,040 1,721,689
Profit for the year EEEA = - - - - 292,639 292,639 8,304 300,943
Other comprehensive expense for the year: EEEMLARL
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans EERAMAZEERE = = = = = (3,467) (3,467) - (3.467)
Exchange differences on translation of REBNEBZERER
foreign operations = = = = (98,497) = (98,497) (3,550)  (102,047)
Total comprehensive income/lexpense] for the year  EELEKE /(X i) BH = = = = (98,497) 289172 190,675 4,754 195,429
Transfer to reserve BREHE = = = 13,219 = (13,219) = = =
Final 2022 dividend CEIIERERR 1 = = = = = (14732)  (74,732) = (74,732)
Interim 2023 dividend ZRIZERERE 11 - = = = - (160,140)  (160,140) - (160,140)
At 31 March 2023 RIFZ=%=F=+-H 5,338 573,910* (229)*  118,089* (5,844)*  938,188* 1,629,452 52,794 1,682,246
* * ZERERECGERNGSMBIRTRNGEESHE

HK$1,624,114,000

(2022: HK$1,668,311,000)

statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

in the consolidated

=]

1,624,114,000%7xT (ZF "4 : 1,668,311,000

BT) -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHERER

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_E_=F-HFA=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant

2023 2022
—E-= —E-C-&
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#& T FEIT

KEREEXEZHERE
BR# B T 399,444 363,938

BUTEBRE

RWITHE WA 5 (3,806) (3,403)
B E A 6 21,631 5,128

ME BERRERE

and equipment 7 97,585 95,808
Depreciation of right-of-use FRESENS
assets 7 19,378 15,967
Amortisation of intangible mEEEEN
assets 7 2,821 2,821
Loss on disposal and write-off HERMEEYE - BE R
of items of property, plant HREEEEBEE FE
and equipment, net 7 2,063 267
Income derived from financial BAFEFANBENESHM
assets at fair value through BEMSKE
profit or loss 7 (1,543) (3,442)
537,573 477,084
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TE &R, (H0) 51,778 (155,881)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts  FEWEBR RO (38 40)
receivable 48,730 (45,035)
Decrease/(increase) in FEMRIE  REkHEMEK
prepayments, deposits and RIER (3 )
other receivables 15,421 (39,347)
Increase in accounts payable F& 1 BR SR 4E AN 76,110 22,846
Decrease in accrued liabilities and FEEt & & & E 1 fE 4 718
other payables o (74,272) (10,889)
Increase/(decrease) in pension BiAETE&aE
scheme liabilities g, CR) (626) 6,366
Settlement of pension scheme HERAKEEAEE
liabilities (16) (104)
Increase in a restricted bank 5 PRl SR 17 45 AR 1E AN
balance (526) (24)
Exchange realignment BE & FA 2 (8,267) 10,027
Cash generated from operations &EE4AZRE 645,905 265,043
Interest paid EMFE (21,631) (5,128)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEFNER (17,369) (32,127)
Overseas tax paid BB RIE (51,650) (51,940)
Net cash flows from operating REREEBZ
activities Rense#E 555,255 175,848

A
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE 35 (B BR) =R B BR A &

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

n'mniﬁﬁ;ﬁlzi(n‘ﬁ)

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_E_=F=Z/F=+—HIFE

2023 2022

s = B HF

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5% FEIT FHBIT

CASH FLOWS FROM REKRETBZHRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of items HEYE MEKREEER

of property, plant and FrE B3 {E

equipment, net 1,321 2,969
Purchases of items of property, BEBEYZE KENMREIER

plant and equipment (105,696) (124,221)
Purchases of leasehold land EEHEHE LM 14(a) — (39,317)
Interest received B W F 2 3,806 3,403
Income derived from financial BAFEFNEDTNERH

assets at fair value through BEMSKE

profit or loss 1,543 3,442
Business combination EBEH 29 - 10,583
Asset acquisition BEWEE 30 (52,492) 1,088
Increase in non-current portion of 1% & JE 7T Eh &R 4 1 0

deposits (41,611) (48,236)
Net cash flows used in investing FAREKREZESH =

activities REeEMERE (193,129) (190,289)
CASH FLOWS FROM REMETBZRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown/(repayment) of bank  12E ({E&) R{TEFRE

loans, net (27,393) 197,050
Dividends paid Eﬁﬂﬁu (234,872) (180,880)
Proceeds from issuance of shares 1T FIEFIE — 7,614
Principal portion of lease %ﬂ RIEXEZED

payments (9,558) (8,743)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RE (AR MEFEZ

financing activities REeEMERE (271,823) 15,041
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RE&ERREEZEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS EniRE 90,303 600
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRekREEEEER

beginning of year 455,841 442,395
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [EE& ) 2 B 25 H

changes, net (30,757) 12,846
CASH AND CASH FRZBERAEFEHEE

EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR 515,387 455,841




EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
BARERER(E)

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_E_=F=ZF=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—B-= s F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5% T#ET THT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES HERBEE£EEERAZ
OF CASH AND SRR
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE KRIRITHEER 20 370,250 425,999
Non-pledged time deposits with REESRK/REIEHH
original maturity of less than THBe=EAN
three months when acquired EIRBEHER 20 146,280 30,459
Less: Restricted bank balance 2R EIER AT 4 R 20 (1,143) (617)
Cash and cash equivalents as mERERERAHEZ
stated in the consolidated RekRe«%EEER

statement of cash flows

515,387 455,841
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R

31 March 2023
¥ =FZ/F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. RAEAIREEER
INFORMATION
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated ANBAREESHESMEIZEREL
in the Cayman lIslands. The registered office address of 5] o A N T = i =5 & #y it ACricket
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands. Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman
The principal place of business of the Company is Islands * ANB 2 T EEEMBUNRE
located at Units 0902-0903 and 0905-0906, 9/F, Tower BRI EEE70EE R OBE
B, Regent Centre, 70 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, ¥20902-0903= ;2 0905-0906= o
New Territories, Hong Kong.
The Group's principal activities are the manufacture and AREBZIFTEXBRAGEERNESSEEHR
trading of sportswear and garments. HE AR AR o
Information about subsidiaries MEBATZE ¥
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as ANBTENRBATHEBOT
follows:
Percentage of

s . oy et

e ™ *amRERER D
Name ML BRIk 2023 2022 Principal activities
RERE BRERERME HREMEX ZRICZF IEEER
Eagle Nice (EAG) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2; 100 100 Investment holding
EX(EXEE)ERLAF B Non-voting deferred HK$10,000 "REER

"YM (Shantou)”) (Note (b))

BECUE) HRERAF
o
(I# % GlEa) (K EEb))

Eagle Nice Development Limited
EBXERERASF

Maitex (EAG) Limited
R (MEERBRAE

ERBERORRERAA
(“Maitex PRC") (Note (b))
(MExRF®]) (M Eb)

HIBEEERARERAE
(“Hubei Dongneng”) (Note (c))
(MEAeEnae ) (H (c))

Pro Kingtex Vietnam Co., Limited

WGP RRERAE
(“EN (Jingmen)”) (Note (c))
(T (7F3) ) (MY aE(c))

The People’s Republic of
China (“PRC")/Mainland
China

FEARLME
(TshE )/ REKRE

Hong Kong
]

Hong Kong
]

PRC/Mainland China
FE B AR

PRC/Mainland China
FE B AR

Vietnam

HiFg

PRC/Mainland China
FE R E A R

(Note (a)) (2022: Ordinary HK$2;

Non-voting deferred HK$10,000)
LmR2E T

SRR FRIEITAR10,0008 7T (K 3E(a))

(ZB-—F Z@BR2ET ¢

IR ZREIT 10,000 T0)

US$23,500,000 100 100
(2022: US$23,500,000)

23,500,000% 7T
(Z®Z 4 :23,500,000% 7T)

HK$1 (2022: HK$1) 100 100
TBT(ZBI2F 1B

HK$1,000 (2022: HK$1,000) 100 100
1,0008 T (2B 24 :1,000%7T)

HK$40,000,000 100 100
(2022: HK$40,000,000)

40,000,000 7T
(=% Z Z4 :40,000,000% 7T)

RMB100,000,000 80 80
(2022: RMB100,000,000)

A R #100,000,0007T
(B
A R #100,000,0007T)

US$7,800,000 100 100
(2022: US$7,800,000)

7,800,000 T
(ZFZ =4 :7,800,000%7T)

RMB35,000,000 80 80
(2022: RMB35,000,000)

A R #35,000,0007%

X B #35,000,0007)

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

SEREEEHREREK

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

SEREEEHRERKK

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

SEREEEHRERKK

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

SEREEEHREREK

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

SEREEEHREREK

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and
garments

LEREREBRERAR

Manufacture and trading of
sportswear and garments

SEREEEHREREK



CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FiE 35 (EABR) =R B IR A &

1.

Issued share/paid-up

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023

- =F=H=+—H

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

rEIREEER @

business registered capital FAE B REE DL

Name ML BRfThRE/ 2023 2022  Principal activities

NEEE BRREEME YRFMEER el CRCCF FERER

King Eagle (EAG) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2022: HKS$1) 100 100 Investment holding

cE(BXEE)ERAH 5E 1BT(ZEZ2F 18T REER

ERBEBRXERAH PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
("Hung Eagle Garment”) (Note (b)) RE/ B K B (2022: US$4,000,000) sportswear and
(TEREM]) (M (b)) 4,000,000% 7T garments

(ZFZ 24 :4,000,000%75) SEREEEHREREK

Eagle Nice (Indonesia) Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 (2022: HK$1) 100 100 Investment holding

Wx (R ERERAHE 5E 1BT(ZEZ2F 18T REEK

P.T. Eagle Nice Indonesia (“EN Indonesia”) Indonesia US$32,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
((ExEEel) ENfg (2022: US$32,000,000) sportswear and

32,000,000% 7T garments
Z % 24 :32,000,000% 7T) LEREEEHRERAK
Eagle Nice (Jiangxi) Garment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100  Investment holding
B CIE) HXERRE EE (2022: HK$10,000) RERE
10,0007 70
(ZBZZ4 :10,000%7T)

EX(EE)RXRERAH PRC/Mainland China US$28,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“EN (Yifeng)") (Note (b)) E/ P E AR (2022: US$28,000,000) sportswear and
(TEx(EZ) D (MEED) 28,000,000% 7T garments

ZZ 24 :28,000,000% 7T) LEREEEHRERAK
PT Gelindo Garmentama (“PGG") (Note (d)) Indonesia IDR86,141,155,750 100 100  Manufacture and trading of
(TPGG ) (RIEE(d)) ENfE (2022: IDR86,141,155,750) sportswear and
86,141,155,750EN B /& garments
ZEICZF HEREREDRERBK
86,141,155, 750EN B /&)

EREHHKRERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB18,000,000 100 100  Leasing properties
("Guangdong Dalian”) (Note (b) and (e))  FRE/FEIAE (2022: RMB18,000,000) HEYE
(TESER ) (M (o) K (e)) Ag&mws 000,0007C

ZRIE
A K#18,000,0007T)

B (I HXERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB 18,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and trading of
(“Foshan Garment”) (Notes (b) and (f)) hE PE AR (2022: RMB18,000,000) sportswear and garments
(Tl B2 ) (B 3 (o) B (F)) A R #18,000, 0007 SEREEEHRERKR

(Z®=Z
A R #:18,000, ooom

Beyond Top Co., Ltd. (“Beyond Top") British Virgin Islands US$1,000,000 100 — Investment holding
(Note (g)) ([ Beyond Top J)(Kt&E(g)) EREBRES 1,000,000% 7T REEKR

Eagle Nice Vietnam Company Limited Vietnam US$6,500,000 100 —  Manufacture and trading of
("Eagle Nice Vietnam”) (Note (g)) 6,500,000% 7T sportswear and garments

(I Eagle Nice Vietnam J) (BFi#3E(g) )

FEREREBRERAR
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Notes:

(a) The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends,
no rights to attend or vote at general meetings and no rights
to receive any surplus assets in a return of capital in a
winding-up (other than the nominal amount paid up or
credited as paid-up on such shares, after the sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the
company in such winding-up).

(b) YM (Shantou), Maitex PRC, Hung Eagle Garment, EN (Yifeng),
Guangdong Dalian and Foshan Garment are registered as
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

(c) Hubei Dongneng and EN (Jingmen) are registered as limited
liability companies under PRC law.

(d) On 6 December 2021, the Group acquired PGG from
independent third parties. Further details of this acquisition
are included in note 29 to the financial statement.

(e) On 1 March 2022, the Group acquired Guangdong Dalian from
Pk 5hEB 5 B R A& which was wholly-owned by
Mr. Huang Yongbiao, a director and a shareholder of the
Company.

(f) On 14 February 2022, the Group established Foshan Garment
in the PRC.

(9) On 1 May 2022, the Group acquired Beyond Top together with
its only wholly-owned subsidiary, Eagle Nice Vietnam. Further
details of this acquisition are included in note 30 to the
financial statements.

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

1.

NEIREERER @

B 5 -

(a)

(9)

BERERETERLEEANERKD  HFE
BREREHEGLRE  TEETERR
Lﬁﬂiﬂ—*fﬁfv&'ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfz( BRER
i % 4% £2100,000,000,000,0007% 7T 43" Ik
%@1 BREEAR BREKROZER
FARIIESLE WEAEFRI) ©

MECLE)  BXREH BREE Bx
(BE) EREEHRGBLURRBREPE
EREMZIEBERZE -

WAL EYBE K I 3 (FIFT) AR P EUA R
MzBEREEAR -

TEBEZ-F+ZAANA AEEEBIL
FEZTTRIEPGG - AR BHNR Y
BRRMEE29 -

B _F=F—H A&EEBAAQAF
EEHRREEKELELERBENERX
SANEBERARKBERER-

ZE__F”ZFB+WMB  AEBERFTEH
ANk

_E__FRAB—H AKEEKE
Beyond TopERIHEMKE—HNLEKRBAR
Eagle Nice Vietnam ° AR KSR FEIEEL
BB 5 SR R HFEE30 ©

LtRRENBABBRARNABERESE -

ERINEAREWELE  HEEERR

;/ |I£,_'|n

CRENDHAEEENEEEEAY

EYBAASEEEFEZTERD - &

EERR

oA I EM B AR E R

EEREARITER -



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group"”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBEHRME(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

2.1 R EE

LWEMBRRDRBEEEGAMLE
([BEBGMAE )R ZEBMBRE
HAU((EBMBREEND (AP EEMR
EEBMBHRESEL FBEHEN(S
BEENDRRRE) FBAREGRE
AR EB(RBMEP) 2 RERERE - It
FHMBBRRREELRAERMR - R
RFEFABZNEREERI - HTHZ
NYEFTE - BRBBERN  BHRKY
BUBTT ([BIT)) 2% MABEEHEE
AANERBEEZTAL-

mERE
REMBBEREERALIEHENEAE
(B AEEBDBE_S_==A
=t+—HLEFEZHBRER WELEIE
RAQFEEIBEEFHNER (BES
BHEER) HAEEEBSHERES
EEMEEXNERRBRIRETWATE
E#H - BEEATEERKRESTOENR
EHMELEK  UASEEEZEENEZESH
#EREBRFAEBRESRRETHER
EERRENNBEEER) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 GREEE
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or
similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

REEEW

—RBERT  BE—EAEE BZBREE
=S - AN RS EEERT N
WIREATRFEIEMENTRFE - A
HERRNBHBIREST TS HEB RN -
rEBEEEMEHEBAEELRER &
&

(a) HZFERESTHMERZEERTAN

BHRHE

(b)) MREBEHEMESORHFAEZENERN
&

©) FAEENREENEERRE-

MEBARREREREKSHENMBRSE
TR Gt BEREAR QB FAARAEET - Kt
BRrEZEEUBAEENSEHEZ
HEMAEGHE  WER RS EL L

BEEETAN

ARBEEARFERERREREGEE
m R H e E & AR AR BME I
SIBFERBRREDEHRAEBTR - K
EERBERRAZEARSMELENEEN
REERGE #xm KA XHERE
REVNEGARERSBHEE -

HEBERBELER EXAANZRES
RERz-—ERZAHREZE AEEEE
HAEHESEHRREQR - BAR
MFrBREERSE (REREEHMNE) &
BaXZ AR



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary; (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest; and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received; (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained; and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

2.1

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework")
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing
its requirements. The amendments also add to
HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business
combinations that occurred on or after 1 April
2022. As there were no business combinations
during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items as determined by HKAS 2
Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied
the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after 1 April 2021. Since there was no
sale of items produced prior to the property, plant
and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the
purpose of assessing whether a contract is
onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to
the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to contracts for which it
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 April
2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 April 2022.
As there was no modification or exchange of
the Group’s financial liabilities during the year,
the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Further

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as
a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before
1 January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating

to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall
apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

information about those HKFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
and is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the
seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain
or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application and is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the
HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a
right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application and is not yet in a
position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on the Group's
results of operations and financial position.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is
non-mandatory, an effective date for these amendments
is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with
the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The Group is
in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
and is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.

2.3
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 /ncome taxes so that
it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented,
with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In
addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted. The Group is
in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
and is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories and financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’'s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or

24 FETTBRERBME @

FEmMEERER
REBESARFEBE ST RETUEE
WREBETNBFEXATREESRD - fH§H
BELAPR ezt ROEE - 2R
NEEEEF KRB SENGLELEE
ERERNEEREBEBRE(BERMN T
IO EORENEBEATBEBESE
EiEpZEEERDREREMET
REREE (I FREMITE B HR) - B
MR ERBEREEHBEGF ARTRRE -

FEAL
ETHNERT  BRAALSEREAEEH
BRE

(@) BARAALTHZALZERBEE M
ZB ANt

(i) EFIXNHEREHAEE
(il HAEEEERXESN N

(i) AREAEEHAALEEFRRAETE
EEENE



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FiE 35 (EABR) =R B IR A &

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The

cost of an

item of property, plant and equipment

comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings 20 to 50 years
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures, 20%
equipment and motor
vehicles
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and
equipment under construction or installation, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
purchase, construction, installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationship is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of 6 years.

Backlog is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 1
year.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease component and a non-lease component,
the Group adopts the practical expedient not to separate
the non-lease component and to account for the lease
component and the associated non-lease component
(e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the wunderlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 20 to 60 years
Plant 3 to 6 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BERRMI(E)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery
and equipment (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do
not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the income
statement when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are more than 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts
receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FETHBREHME »
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease
liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are
not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services is recognised
at the point in time when control of the assets or
services is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of sportswear and garments.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Other Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China and Vietnam are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme for their
employees who are registered as permanent residents in
Mainland China and Vietnam. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Other Employee benefits (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan for the
employees of its subsidiaries in Indonesia through an
unfunded pension plan. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit
pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the
return on plan assets (excluding net interest), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained profits through other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the

earlier of:

° the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

° the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

° net interest expense or income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The
gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or the
income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBERRNE(R)
31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

24 TETTBRERBME @

M |)
HETHBIMBAALIFUBTRINEE
oRBESPR ZFERZEEREE
BRESHARNERRESEBT  Hlkx
AEBAERRZHZZFRTERREA
BB RREZERREME2EKREN
R NER KRB #EE - HEBINES
B EZREBIEBAREMEE KT
ZHBEBERERANEDBANR-

HRBENEZMELEZEMAFERK
BRASEENEGEZIRABEZAFER
BEREFRBIEBNEEREBRE -
WRBHARERRE

MRERERNERMS  BINIBLRRAZ
ReEnERRENEAHZERERR
BERBT -FRNEBIBRAAZEERS
MERENMEFHERRERBT -

& — €20z Hoday |enuuy

BEH=T



EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, their
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from sale of sportswear
and garments and provision of related
subcontracting services with no alternative use
at a point in time

The Group determines at contract inception whether it
transfers to customers the control of its sportswear and
garments over time or at a point in time in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Management's assessment process
involves significant judgements in determining whether
the Group’s sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services create assets
with no alternative use and has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. The Group
has also considered the contractual terms as well as
respective governing law. Based on the assessment of
the Group’'s management, the terms of the relevant
sales contracts do not create an enforceable right to
payment for the Group after taking into consideration
indicators such as whether the Group is entitled for a
compensation cost incurred for the performance
completed to date plus a reasonable profit margin.
Accordingly, the sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services with no
alternative use is considered to be performance
obligation satisfied at a point in time.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2023 was
HK$104,076,000 (2022: HK$104,076,000). Further details
are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group determines that
there are five reportable operating segments, based on
the locations of customers (the destinations of sales),
including Mainland China, the United States of America
(the "USA"), Europe, Japan and others. These segments
are managed separately as each segment is subject to
risks and returns that are different from one another.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group's profit before
tax except that interest income and other unallocated
income and gains, and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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4. BENEER »

2023 —E=
Mainland
China USA Europe NETED] Others Consolidated
RE K E EE] BN BE EfitE 38
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTET FTERT FTET FTERT TET
Segment revenue: DEEERA
Sales to external HEFIHIRER
customers 1,964,572 880,187 627,631 103,593 475,124 4,051,107
Segment results PEEE 267,590 236,657 103,318 20,938 84,797 713,300
Interest income and other F BN R E bk
unallocated income and  ARECIKA K Iz
gains 20,659
Unallocated expenses A (334,515)
Profit before tax BRI A& A 399,444
Income tax expense FieiExX (98,501)
Profit for the year FEET 300,943
Segment assets NEEE 1,208,266 416,480 343,248 59,864 291,070 2,318,928
Unallocated assets REREE 755,819
3,074,747
Segment liabilities NEEE 383,232 130541 109,806 17,017 80,474 721,070
Unallocated liabilities REEEaE 671,431
1,392,501
Other segment Hth &R -
information:
Depreciation and EREE
amortisation 36,916 24,565 14,539 2,041 10,019 88,080
Unallocated amounts PN v 31,704
119,784
Capital expenditure* BEARRET* 45,705 9,442 11,664 1,908 62,150 130,869
Unallocated amounts Riplc 8 77,242
208,111
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * EARTRARARNEVE BEREREUR
equipment and leasehold land. HELH-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BENFEN @
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)
2022 - = S
Mainland
China USA Europe Japan Others  Consolidated
EE N ESLE] BUM HA HttE RE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TERT TER TET

Segment revenue: DEEERA
Sales to external HEFHRER
customers 1,882,199 674,677 644,081 84,076 383,338 3,668,371
Segment results PEEE 309,202 116,948 115,534 14,389 59,042 615,115

Interest income and other | BN R E %
unallocated income and 4R EC U R

gains 20,471
Unallocated expenses A (271,648)
Profit before tax B H5 81 s A 363,938
Income tax expense FieiExX (81,357)
Profit for the year EEEF 282,581
Segment assets NEEE 1,227,359 325,896 477,366 92,594 435,256 2,558,471
Unallocated assets REREE 566,931

3,125,402
Segment liabilities NEaRE 370,179 62,664 84,710 18,403 85,826 621,782
Unallocated liabilities REEEaE 781,931
1,403,713
Other segment Hth &R -
information:
Depreciation and EREE
amortisation 33,943 18,585 14,761 1,691 10,118 79,098
Unallocated amounts PN v 35,498
114,596
Capital expenditure* BEARET* 66,758 4,369 9,690 15,603 122,469 218,889
Unallocated amounts REEEH 84,831
303,720
* Capital expenditure represents additions to property, plant and * EAREIRRAEYE BERZEUAR
equipment and leasehold land. HELMH -
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OPERATING SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (continued)

Geographical information — non-current assets

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023

- =F=H=+—H

RESHEER »

WEEH — FRBEE

2023 2022
—E-=f —E- &

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TFHET

Hong Kong H5E 39,037 35,385
Mainland China =N 933,575 1,003,509
Indonesia ElfE 216,923 220,237
Vietnam g 118,940 41,072
1,308,475 1,300,203

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill.

Information about major customers

Revenue derived from sales to customers which
amounted to over 10% of the total revenue of the Group
is as follows:

EIFERBEEENEREEREBE

B2y TEERE-

FHERERMESR

HERARBEAEEBEEZKRAI0%

DEMERAOT :

2023 2022

—S"=f —E &

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A ZFEA 2,693,503 2,510,647
Customer B =F5EB 627,840 514,312
Customer C ZHBC 544,139 435,907
3,865,482 3,460,866

The above amounts include sales to groups of entities
which are known to be under common control with
these customers.

EREREED-—HEER(ZXFEER L

REFILREH)MOHEE -
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
MBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2023

—E - =H#F=ZH=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS, NET

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

5. SRIAKREMIA R
a0 FER

BEBANZDWRAT -

2023 2022
—E"=F s F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER BT
Revenue from contracts with REBEFEHUMNEEIRAN
customers
— sale of sportswear and garments — EERER B RHEE
and provision of related DY &253E ]
subcontracting services P ER%E 4,051,107 3,668,371
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFAHAMNEERKA

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

(i) BEEXRKAEH

2023 2022
—B-=f - el -2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET

Types of goods or services AmEREHNER

Sale of sportswear and EERERKKEE
garments 4,040,529 3,660,825
Subcontracting services N ERE 10,578 7,546
4,051,107 3,668,371
Geographical markets i [ T 35
Mainland China A B K R 1,964,572 1,882,199
USA ESE] 880,187 674,677
Europe BRI 627,631 644,081
Japan BE 103,593 84,076
Others HAty 475,124 383,338
4,051,107 3,668,371
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GA'NS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information
(continued)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

=R I B H At 1A B 1
0 SR

KEEFGHUNERBAN &)

(i) AEERBAEH &)

TRITRBESHIUFAGHNERE
ZEABREHBERREXERAZE
A

Revenue recognised that was

included in contract liabilities ZEBREEIRAN ¢
at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Sale of sportswear and BERERKXREE

garments

RESHAFAGHEE

2023 2022
—B=H ZECEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
2,300 2,420

(ii) Performance obligation

Sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services
The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the sportswear and garments and
payment is generally due within one to three
months from delivery.

(i) EAEME

E B IREE R B TR & R FE
1HE 7 BRE

B B AEN R E & Ak 3 e A X s
SR MAR—BRERLFR-—E=
EP=RER-G

M= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5. & ZIq A\ K H fth i A K Uk
GAINS, NET (continued) 0 SRR )

KEEFEHNNERBAN @)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligation (continued) (ii) BAIEE &)

M= & T Sc0¢ Hodey |enuuy

Sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services
(continued)

Revenue from the sale of sportswear and garments
and provision of related subcontracting services is
recognised at the point in time when control of
goods is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of sportswear and garments.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices
allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are not
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
because all the remaining performance obligations
in relation to the sale of sportswear and garments
and provision of related subcontracting services are
a part of contracts that have an original expected
duration of less than one year.

B RER K E LR IEHN
7 EIR% (&)

B B AR 2 S B A B B UK 3R (1R B
DERBZEEXEBRANRED=HIE
BREFKER —RBELEERM
8 B AR 2 e B B o

ERAITEENE "EEMNGKRE
MEECRERTEDRER) 2R
ZERITERMBERMERRK
B AREBEHRERMKRHEER
RRHERSEREBEOMER
BENEENRERBRABRIOR—F
NENZz—8D -
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5.

GA'NS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligation (continued)

Sale of sportswear and garments and
provision of related subcontracting services

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

=R I B H At 1A B 1
0 SR

KEEFGHUNERBAN &)

(ii) BHEMEE)

BB RER R E R IEHR
1HE 7 BIRE (&)

(continued)
An analysis of other income and gains, net, is as HMWARKE  FEZATAOT -
follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ETT BT
Bank interest income RITH BN 3,806 3,403
Income derived from financial R AF{EITAEBEN
assets at fair value through ERMEEMFKE
profit or loss 1,543 3,442
Government grants* BB £ 13,464 12,303
Others Hith 3,909 1,590
22,722 20,738

Various government grants have been received by
certain subsidiaries of the Group established (i) in
Mainland China for promoting the manufacturing
industry and maintaining the employment rate and (ii)
in Hong Kong under the COVID-19 relief. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

* AEEETHEARBRKEEE
B - () AR B KB B AL 2 B R
NEEHPDEMUEERSETERE
RRERRNNEBRIIZHWE R
B 2019 iR 7R 55 W 47 R 5t 8 T A9
ERNRERERRAREER-

grants.
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Interest on bank loans WITERFE 21,161 4,541
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNA
(note 14(b)) (B 5£14(b) ) 470 587
21,631 5,128

M= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
ZerieZa=1—15

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRWEIEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREBBRBRIDEN LIOR(GTN) T &
(crediting): BHEEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET BT
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAE 3,295,189 3,018,152
Auditor's remuneration =z 2 BN BN & 4,231 4,372
Depreciation of property, plant and  #% - MEKRETE
equipment (note 13)* (FF5E13) * 97,585 95,808
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENS
(note 14(a))* (MEzE14(a) ) * 19,378 15,967
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEEHN(MF17)
(note 17) 2,821 2,821
Employee benefit expenses BERAXE (TEREESK
(excluding directors’ and chief THABESME — M) ¢
executive's remuneration —
note 8):
Wages and salaries TERF® 865,895 835,089
Pension contributions RINE H R 146,430 138,605
Less: Forfeited contributions” BRI = —
Net pension contributions BAREHIFE 146,430 138,605
Total employee benefit expenses* HEEEMNZH 1,012,325 973,694
Foreign exchange gain, net CE Wt - JHEE = (3,921)
Foreign exchange loss, net* EREIE  FE 26,473 —
Lease payments not included in the At AHEEABIEN
measurement of lease liabilities THERIE (MFsE14(c) ) *
(note 14(c))* 165 350
Loss on disposal and write-off of HERMEDE  BEX
items of property, plant and REBEEHZEE  RE
equipment, net* 2,063 267
Income derived from financial assets ZRAFEFTABZHNER
at fair value through profit or loss BEMSKE (1,543) (3,442)




EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continuea) 7.

A There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the
Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

These amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.

Included in the respective balances are the following amounts
which are also included in the cost of inventories sold
disclosed above:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

FRIga T 2
A MEAEEEARETHANRBREREGHAR
KIFZE R -

# ZEERFANGEREROEMEEH
X

* EEABEBEUTHALXAEEEER
BERlAZEE -

Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRERZEITE

equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE
Employee benefit expenses BEREMXH

Lease payments not included in the AT AHEEEFENHEERE

measurement of lease liabilities

2023 2022
—_EB=F =SS S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
69,874 64,012
18,206 14,811
863,326 841,980
165 350

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ESRITRESME

FEREEERTRAZMEREETEH
BREMERRBDEFLTRA  FE
(R EMEB)HE383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (f)F B
AEI(WBEEEFmER) RO F2ERKE
LI

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFET FET

Fees e 988 968

Other emoluments: =

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EEREYET

in kind 16,153 15,726

Discretionary bonuses 15 78 41 11,260 12,823

Pension scheme contributions BRE 58I 1,974 1,917

29,387 30,466

30,375 31,434

—_—
2|
©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
L2l =15

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION

(continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

8. EERTTHUEEMEw

(a) BWIFHTES
FRNNFBILFEATERZRESU

directors during the year were as follows: o
2023 2022
B4 —EFEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Mr. Chan Cheuk Ho FERL4E 247 242
Mr. Lu Chi Chant EME%E 247 242
Ms. Tham Kit Wan ERERL 247 242
Mr. Leung Spencer Yu Cheong RBEHHE 247 242
988 968

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

FRLEAMENBIFENTES
ZHE(ZTRZ2F HE) -

(2022: Nil).
(b) Executive directors (b) BiFES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
g EER BRE

fig ENEHN BEEa BEGEAN L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TERT TET

2023 ZBZZHE

Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing** BB L% - 4,198 3,821 582 8,601
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BN EE - 3,936 3,351 545 7,832
Mr. Huang Yongbiao BEXEEE - 2,895 1,371 293 4,559
Ms. Chen Fang Mei BEEZL - 2,784 178 323 3,285
Mr. Shih Chih-Hung BEREE = 337 26 = 363
Mr. Chung Chi Kit ERGEE = 1,666 2,487 231 4,384
Mr. Hu Chia-Ho HEMEE = 337 26 - 363
= 16,153 11,260 1,974 29,387
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EEMTTRERME =
EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) BMITESE (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
e EUR Bk
ik ENEA i AR ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTHET TERT TERT TERT
2022 k- S 3
Executive directors: HITES -
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing** BEALEE — 4,076 3,811 565 8,452
Mr. Chen Hsiao Ying BINExE — 3,821 3,192 529 7,542
Mr. Huang Yongbiao BEKELE — 2,823 4,073 284 7,180
Ms. Chen Fang Mei BEERL — 2,734 173 314 3,221
Mr. Shih Chih-Hung BEREE — 327 25 — 352
Mr. Chung Chi Kit ERGEE — 1,618 1,624 225 3,367
Mr. Hu Chia-Ho HEMEL - 327 25 - 352
— 15,726 12,823 1,917 30,466

*x Mr. Chung Yuk Sing is also the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

The directors’ remuneration shown above does not
include the estimated monetary value of the Group's
owned premises provided rent-free to an executive
director, Mr. Chung Yuk Shing, during the year. The
estimated rental value of such accommodation was
HK$130,000 (2022: HK$138,000) for the year ended
31 March 2023.

> EBEREETRARBDERRITR

FRNTEFAEERERABDERE
EfB & 2 ZHE -

TR EEMELRBIEREN
MATESESFLEREREN
AEBBEYEZHFEE BE
_E_=F=ZRA=+—HLEE"
ZE 8 Z 5 51 1 {8 %130,000% 7T
(Z=| % 138,000 7TT) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
ZerieZa=1—15

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AAREHMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2022: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining one (2022: two)
non-director and highest paid employee for the vyear
ended 31 March 2023 are set out below:

FN hARSFHEEEENA(ZF
TIE ZR)EE BRARFHRMOF
BEAELXHWEHSKE RBEE-FT-=
FZR=+—HLEFER BHT—%
TIoF MBRSHFHNFERREE
WM EFROT

2023 2022
—B-=F —ECHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EHREYET

in kind 1,640 5,487
Discretionary bonuses B 15 78 41 2,225 2,419
Pension scheme contributions BIRESETEIHR 227 760

4,092 8,666

The number of non-director and highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MENFUTEENRSHFMIFESRE
EMHEBWT :

Number of employees

ES#E

2023 2022
—_EB_=fF —EF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £1,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% JT - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,0007 7T - -

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 T E4,000,0007 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007 7T 1 —
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T £5,000,0007 7T - 1

1 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

FEN - AEEREQERHEMNLLARS
FEALXNMESFERMASIMAKRE

ERNOBMIFABEBEE(CT D

FE) -
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the corporate income
tax rate for all enterprises in Mainland China is 25%.

Moreover, under the relevant tax laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a company may set off losses incurred
by it in a financial year against profits made by it in the
succeeding financial year or years, subject to a
maximum of five financial years.

In addition, Vietnam corporate tax has been provided at
the rate of 20% (2022: 20%) and the Indonesia
corporate tax has been provided at the rate of 22%
(2022: 22%) on the estimated assessable profits.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBEBRME(R)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

10. FAifS M

EN - ERFERRESTEEENGTE
EREAL65% (ZE - _F :16.5%)
MEEERE EAEE—EHRBAT AT
BREMEFNEEREEBIRIN - ZHB
NEH2,000,000BTT(ZFB-_F
2,000,000 7T ) FE:RMEFI%8.25% (=&
T :8.25%) MEMR - MER TEZER
A BIZ1656% (ZEFEZ2F 116.5%)
M - Hfthith S ERR B FNKRIE - Al
RIBAEBEEFAERRWIRTRETE -

RER-ZEF/N\E—B—HERNTEH
EMBSKRZE PEKEMERENDE
FTSMEAR25% °

o REBBERNPBRREREERSR
8 —RRAARER—EMBRFEEESL
ZEE IREERER—ERZEMBEF
EZiu#Ef ERZAGE8RAEMEE
B o

o BEARREK20% (ZE -4
20% ) M EMEEE - MENE AR RITRMEET
FERR M m F LA22% (Z B Z4F :122%)
REIEEE -

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Current tax charge for the year: AEEZHHEREXLH

Hong Kong 55 31,118 19,763
Elsewhere Hithith 75 60,579 58,803

Underprovision for current tax in BEEENBERERERR
respect of prior years = 340
Deferred (note 26) IEIE (B 5F26) 6,804 2,451
Total tax charge for the year KEERBEXHERE 98,501 81,357

M= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
ZerieZa=1—15

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fis i @
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BRARUARNBRERE M B ARB
before tax using the statutory rates for the tax ENREAEEEREIEREFEZRR
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of a2 RMEXHEREERRIFEZ
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the MEXHZHERAOT

effective tax rate is as follows:

2023 2022
—B-= ZEICHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Profit before tax B 1% AT 4 ) 399,444 363,938
Tax at the applicable rates to profit in ZBERRKEEAEEEHEF
the tax jurisdictions concerned BHRAZREFEZRE 83,795 80,075
Adjustments in respect of current tax FLIBEEERIEARIEEL
of previous years B = 340
Income not subject to tax BAEBZFRZIA (3,251) (3,285)
Expenses not deductible for tax AANRZER 8,973 5,453
Effect of withholding tax on the AEBEBZHENE QA
distributable profits of the Group's AokaflEilRze e
PRC subsidiaries 2,221 1,000
Tax loss not recognised RERRIEESEIE 7,875 —
Temporary differences not REDRERFESR
recognised (1,112) (2,226)
Tax charge at the Group's effective RAEBEERREIFEZ
rate M IA 3 H 98,501 81,357
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

DIVIDENDS 1. K2
2023 2022
—EB=F ZEFIHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FET
Dividends paid during the year: FNEMEKE :
Final in respect of the financial year #HE_ZE_ "4
ended 31 March 2022 — HK14 =A=+—HILEMBEE
cents (2022: HK12 cents) per KEKE — BREBK
ordinary share 148N ZB &
12740) 74,732 63,840
Interim — HK30 cents (2022: HK22 HHIKRE — ERZER
cents) per ordinary share 0B (ZFBZF
227AW) 160,140 117,040
234,872 180,880
Proposed dividend: =
Final: HK8 cents (2022: HK14 cents) FREIKRE EERZEK
per ordinary share 87511]1(_$::$ :
14;&%) 42,704 74,732
Special: HK6 cents (2022: nil) per KAlRE SREBEK
ordinary share 67511]1(_$::$ ) 32,028 —
74,732 74,732

The proposed final dividend for the year is based on the
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
reporting date, and is subject to the approval of the
Company’'s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial
reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company for the year of HK$292,639,000 (2022:
HK$274,633,000) and 533,800,000 (2022: weighted
average number of ordinary shares 532,557,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during those years.

12.

REEZEBIRRBRETIRRES A
ARBERTZROHBEFHE  LAFTAE
AREIBRRREERRBFRGHAERT

AEE - ZFMIFHRER I E R BRIE [ KR
statements do not KE -

XrRERAELESRET

EREABANDRBERNEAQNTER A
FE 15 335 #11292,639,0008 T (ZFE - —4F
274,633,000 7T)  ULAFNEZETEZE
}%533,800,000f% (ZF =" F Z @K
h0#E SE 15 $1532,557,0000% ) 51 & -

RBEE_F_=ZFRFL_F=H
=St+—HLEFE HEEEBELEZE
BITEER AUBEZIARSRER
B'BH -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
MBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2023

—E - =H#F=ZH=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. % - BB RRE

Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles in progress
HE -
RE - RfE
By WHEVERE RSE ERIR “t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
31 March 2023 ZB”=#=ZH=+-H
Cost: A
At 1 April 2022 RZIBEZZFMA—H 953,542 286,554 464,953 118,919 14,959 1,838,927
Asset acquisition (note 30) iR 24,904 = = = = 24,904
Additions AE 335 45,173 31,334 8,678 68,412 153,932
Disposals HE (36) - (7,346) (600) - (7,982)
Transfers B 3,319 - 3,170 468 (6,957) -
Exchange realignment ERRAE (59,409) (17,754) (20,394) (5,677) (1,100) (104,334)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=%F
ZB=+-H 922,655 313,973 471,117 121,788 75,314 1,905,447
Accumulated depreciation: RENE
At 1 April 2022 RZZBZZFMA—H 266,717 196,808 303,841 95,324 = 862,690
Provided during the year FENEE MW7)

(note 7) 24,909 27,946 34,845 9,885 = 97,585
Disposals HE = = (4,340) (258) - (4,598)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (15,971) (12,195) (15,905) (4,429) = (48,500)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=F

=B=+-H 275,655 212,559 318,441 100,522 = 907,177
Net book value: IREFE :
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=F
=B=+—-H 647,000 101,414 153,276 21,266 75,314 998,270




13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

% BERSRE®

Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold Plant and and motor  Construction
Buildings improvements machinery vehicles in progress Total
HE -
BER £E RE
BF HEVEEE #a RAE ERIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET FET TET
31 March 2022 —_B”_”_5=HA=+-H
Cost: B
At 1 April 2021 RZIEZ—-FmA—H 795,502 259,218 416,929 108,904 — 1,580,553
Acquisition of a subsidiary K —EHEAR
(note 29) (BtsE29) 16,584 125 8,097 798 386 25,990
Asset acquisition (note 30) BE WS (B3E30) 42,848 — 7,844 922 — 51,614
Additions nNE 5,636 17,879 30,608 6,554 78,323 139,000
Disposals HE — (49) (11,185) (1,250) — (12,484)
Write-off s - - (30) - - (30)
Transfers b 63,634 — 385 - (64,019) -
Exchange realignment P& 2 A B 29,338 9,381 12,305 2,991 269 54,284
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZH
ZB=+—-H 953,542 286,554 464,953 118,919 14,959 1,838,927
Accumulated depreciation: REBIE :
At 1 April 2021 RIFZ-FWE—H 231,464 163,496 272,350 84,252 — 751,562
Provided during the year ENRE
(note 7) (H&E7) 26,854 27,200 31,778 9,976 — 95,808
Disposals HE — 6) (8,090) (1,182) - (9,278)
Exchange realignment FER A 8,399 6,118 7,803 2,278 — 24,598
At 31 March 2022 RIB-ZH
=B=+—H 266,717 196,808 303,841 95,324 — 862,690
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 March 2022 RIB-_F
ZBE=+—H 686,825 89,746 161,112 23,595 14,959 976,237
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BERRMI(E)

31 March 2023

—E - =H#F=ZH=+—H

14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and plant used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 20 to 60 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of plant generally have lease
terms of 3 to 6 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There is a lease contract that includes an
extension option.

14. HE

FEEFEREBA
FEEREEHEETHEL R TIR
HENHEEGYW HELMERE—RIE
REIXAHEANERBEE it - HEN
F20FE60F  RBZFLMBERN &
BAFEX M HMRIE - TREENHEDS
NEIE6F - —RME * AEBERTEE
EEMSNTEBERNBEHEHEEE - HF
—HEGNHBEHREE -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EFEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use FRNASEFRAESESENEREEER
assets and the movements during the year are as gEMT -
follows:
Leasehold
land Plant Total
HE L Ik et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET THET FET
At 1 April 2021 RZB-—FMA—H 160,748 8,700 169,448
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — R M B A E
(note 29) (Bfd 5£29) 36,158 — 36,158
Asset acquisition (note 30) & & WS (fF5E30) 11,641 — 11,641
Additions NE 39,317 21,114 60,431
Depreciation charge (note 7) T &R X (M7) (7,041) (8,926) (15,967)
Exchange realignment BE o A 2 5,929 332 6,261
At 31 March 2022 and RZIFZ_F
1 April 2022 ZA=+—HXk
—_E-__FMWA—H 246,752 21,220 267,972
Asset acquisition (note 30) & &= WS (M 5E30) 29,275 - 29,275
Depreciation charge (note 7) ¥ &R X (MF5E7) (9,837) (9,541) (19,378)
Exchange realignment B& &2 3 2 (13,795) (417) (14,212)
At 31 March 2023 RIFEZ=F
=B=+—H 252,395 11,262 263,657




14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

One of the Group's leasehold land with a net
carrying amount of HK$1,215,000 (2022:
HK$1,343,000), together with the buildings thereon,
has been provided as rent-free accommodation to
Mr. Chung Yuk Sing, an executive director of the

(b)

Company during the year.

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  F& 35 (B BR ) = i B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

14. HE @

FEEFEREBAE

(a) EHEEZESE)
AEBEHPE-ERBRE
1,215,000 JT(Z & = = £ :
1,343,000 o) 2 fHE L #h - EE
HENEFRENREREAESH
HEERABD—LZHNTES)WEHE
X

(b) HEEE
FNHEEEENREEREESNT

movements during the year are as follows:

2023 2022

—B-= ZEICHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET THT

Carrying amount at 1 April RIUB—HZRHEE 21,811 9,092

Additions ‘ = 21,114
Accretion of interest recognised FNIERK EEF E (M 56)

during the year (note 6) 470 587

Payments (10,028) (9,330)

Exchange realignment EEE2S (450) 348

Carrying amount at 31 March RZ=ZB=+—HZERHEE 11,803 21,811

Analysed into: V=
Current portion B EA &R 10,456 9,713
Non-current portion JEENEAER 9 1,347 12,098

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed
in note 36 to the financial statements.

BEAEEEA ST RYBEERN
36K E -
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

14.

HE =

FEEFEREBA®E
(c) REDEIEBEFENSHEAT

2023 2022
—B-= /B F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#T THT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBMNE 470 587
Depreciation charge of right-of- EREEERNERX
use assets 19,378 15,967
Expense relating to short-term HREARPEHEEZHAX
leases (included in cost of (FEABHERAX)
sales) 165 350
Total amount recognised in REFERNELR
profit or loss 20,013 16,904

(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash
outflows relating to leases that have not vyet
commenced are disclosed in notes 371(c) and 36,
respectively, to the financial statements.

(d)

HERSMHAAERE S RFHEBE
ERMNRRERME 2R
|RMIEE31(c) R36K E °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 15. AR RIE  IRERHEME K
OTHER RECEIVABLES Q]
2023 2022
—E=HF - =S5
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &% FET FHBT
Prepayments TR RIE 58,527 61,233
Deposits and other receivables %% K H fib f& I B 106,453 116,926
Amount due from a director BW—ZEERIE (i) = 8,867
164,980 187,026
Less: Non-current portion of & BEEYE  WE
deposits for purchases kEEEBN
of items of property, JEENEAER 92
plant and equipment B& (41,611) (48,236)
Current portion BNER &R 2> 123,369 138,790
The financial assets included in the above balances STAM EFERIBEE RN EREE © &
relate to receivables for which there was no recent B R R EREC Bk R M BR £ 58 - E T E i
history of default and past due amounts. Their BREBANGEERLTFE MRS
recoverability was assessed with reference to the credit _EERIBEZ”ZF=-ZB=1+—HWE
status of the debtors, and the loss allowances as at BREELSHTHERBERM-

31 March 2023 and 2022 were assessed to be minimal.
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EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (B BR) = B BR A &

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continuea)

Note:

(i) The balance represents a loan principal of HK$8,834,000 and
accrued interest of HK$33,000 due from Mr. Huang Yongbiao,
a director of the Company. The loan bears interest at 4.35%
per annum and is repayable within 30 business days after the
receipt of the final consideration by Mr. Huang Yongbiao for
the acquisition of Guangdong Dalian as detailed in note 30(b)
to the financial statements. Particulars of an amount due from
a director disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong
Kong companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies
(Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, are as follows:

15. FARIE - RERHMEW

FRIE &)
CEX

(i) HEREERANAEEZRKETENE
AR 8,834,000 T & FE 5t #] £33,00078
TG ZE PR EANFRLI% R  BREK
TR 570 A WO ST S R B (RN A BB 3R R Bt
30 FTFER) WRARERIVELEH
P EE - RIEF B (R B % 51)5383(1)(d)
BRANE EBEEFZER) HBB) B350
BENER—ZEEREFBEOT ¢

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding At 31 March outstanding
At 31 March during 2022 and during At 1 April
Name 2023 the year 1 April 2022 the prior year 2021
R-ZBZZE
=ZA=+-BX% BEEE
RZBZ=fF FRREE ZEICZE XEE RIBZ-fF
8 =A=+-H BEEHE mA—H BEEE mE—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TET TER TERT
Mr. Huang Yongbiao BEXREE - 8,867 8,867 8,867 -
16. GOODWILL 16. &
2023 2022
B =F —F°F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Cost and net carrying amount: B AR & BRERE
At beginning of year RER] 104,076 100,334
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—EHRBAF
(note 29) (Bd5E29) — 3,742
At end of year REXR 104,076 104,076




EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED & 35 (EABR) &= R B IR A &

16. GOODW' LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

PRC CGU ONE

Goodwill of HK$26,112,000 (2022: HK$26,112,000),
arising from an acquisition during the year ended
31 March 2008, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Mainland China which is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of sportswear and garments (the “"PRC CGU
ONE").

The PRC CGU ONE generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets.

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross profit
margin which is the average gross profit margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
years and the discount rate of 18.1% (2022: 19.5%),
which is pretax and reflects specific risks relating to the
PRC CGU ONE. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2022:
2%). The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU ONE to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the PRC CGU ONE is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

MmMmWHmmmmmm

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

16. & »

e 2 iR (B A

e ELE N —
REBEEZ_SF/\E=-B=+—HLEE
& 17 B8 P E & 19 226,112,00078 7T
(ZEBZZ4F 26,112,000 7T) B E+
BAEREEHREIARESERES
ZHREEXBEN((FPRREEEEM—
K1) o

FEREEE4AENL—REENRESRA
KEE EH/IINRKRE ﬁﬁﬂ,ﬁlxﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁmﬂ\ °

FERSEABEMN—SFZIKEIEEET
REEHEEET  MERAEBENREHR
SREEEEN 2 AE WY REERE
HZzHEERENE  VEEEZHEIR
MEEMBEFEERERERZE - 781
HERMNEZETEBRIEAMBEZENE
(EEEEFENZFERMERZEY
EFEMB)RIFRKRIBIB(ZEZZF
19.5% ) (Th BRI B K f B 6 A [ 3R < 22 4
BAN—REBAZEERRE - AFHNE
WIREMEFER 2% (ZE_Z_F 2%)
2 RERE - EEZHE TAXFRK
ARESEMEBR 28 KATERHH
ReE4XBEN— Rz ERAESHET
KELE HRPEBREELBEN—RZ
AKEEESNEREE EERARRE
EHRAFELELRERE-
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MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

16. GOODW' LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Vietnam CGU

Goodwill of HK$36,075,000 (2022: HK$36,075,000),
arising from an acquisition during the year ended
31 March 2019, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Vietnam which is engaged in the manufacture of
sportswear (the “Vietnam CGU").

The Vietnam CGU generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets.

The recoverable amount of the Vietnam CGU has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross profit
margin which is the average gross profit margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
years and the discount rate of 21.9% (2022: 19.3%),
which is pretax and reflects specific risks relating to the
Vietnam CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2022:
2%). The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the Vietnam CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Vietnam CGU is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

16. & »

rERENR @

BEREEELE N
REBE_F—AFE=ZB=1+—HILEFE
& 17 W B8 BT EE £ 1Y 7S 2836,075,000 7T
(ZE|Z”” 4 :36,075,000/8 70) R 1E
EREENRENSZRESESEM (8
BRESELEBEAM -

HEREEABENEENEESRAKRE
FPBIRKREEMEENRESRA -

HMERSELEMZ AT REISENIRE
FHREEEE MEABENREBERSHK
CEEEMCAFEHVREEMBEINZ
REeEREFE  -HHEEZGENIRRE
BEkEFFEREAEREE -BURS
MEZIERRAFMBEEZENXR(AR
EHEEEENZFEEMERZFHER
R) R IR R 9%(Z 8/ — = & -
19.3% ) (AR MAI Rk RREMEREESE
BNERZESEREE) -AFHMUENER
EREFERA2% (ZEZ_F 2%) Ziﬂm
REHE - EEHE  TAZERED
FEMBREZE8 K1 g %%t%ﬁ%
EEBEUZARAEBLE KD SE -
HRUEERSELEMNZTREOEES
REREE EERARBEHERFTEN
EHIERE -
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16. GOODW' LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

PRC CGU TWO

Goodwill of HK$38,147,000 (2022: HK$38,147,000),
arising from an acquisition during the year ended
31 March 2019, was allocated to a cash-generating unit
in Mainland China which is engaged in the manufacture
and trading of sportswear (the “PRC CGU TWO").

The PRC CGU TWO generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets.

The recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross profit
margin which is the average gross profit margin achieved
in the year immediately before the budget years and the
discount rate of 17.9% (2022: 19.6%), which is pretax
and reflects specific risks relating to the PRC CGU TWO.
The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2022: 2%). The
directors believe that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the PRC CGU TWO to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the PRC CGU TWO is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBEHRME(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

16. & »

RERENRE

HEREEEEE M

RBEE_ZE-—NE=ZB=+—HILEE
& 17 IR B8 P E & 19 7 238,147,00078 7T
(ZFZ £ :38,147,000387T) BERET
BEAEREESRELEREEZRS
ELfBEMN((FHREB&EEBEM_]]) -

TRHRESELABU_REENEERA
RELBINKEEMEENRERA

FEIBEEELEEMN_SFE2 O IREE£EE )
RIBERAEEEE  MEREBENRER
EREEEEN AFE RV REERE
BZzREREFNE - WHBEEZHGE IR
MERKBFFERRELKTBIHZE - A
REMEZTERBRAMBEZENE
(R EEEFENZEEMERZ Y
EMNR)RIFTBRITIIN(ZB £
19.6% ) (Th BRI B0 K R BREE R B3R & EE 4
BUZHEERZEERR) AEHRMUE
NIBEREFEMY(ZEZ_F 2%)
2 RERE - EEHE  EAZERK
AR EMEIRZ &8 AT ERPE
ReELEN Rz EREDEBLEED
WELE ARTRERESELBA-EY
ARESESREREE EERARRE
HHARKEEL E B RE -
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MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

16. GOODW' LL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Indonesia CGU

Goodwill of HK$3,742,000 (2022: HK$3,742,000), arising
from an acquisition during the year ended 31 March
2022, was allocated to a cash-generating unit in
Indonesia which is engaged in the manufacture and
trading of sportswear and garments (the “Indonesia
CGU").

The Indonesia CGU generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets.

The recoverable amount of the Indonesia CGU has been
determined from the value in use, which is calculated
with reference to cash flow projections based on a
five-year period financial budget approved by senior
management. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The key assumptions for the
cash flow projections are the budgeted gross profit
margin which is the average gross profit margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
years and the discount rate of 20.6% (2022: 18.7%),
which is pretax and reflects specific risks relating to the
Indonesia CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2% (2022:
2%). The directors believe that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the Indonesia CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount. Since the
recoverable amount of the Indonesia CGU is higher than
its carrying amount, the directors consider there was no
impairment of the goodwill at the end of the reporting
period.

16. & »

rERENR @

HEBEZELEN
REBE_FS__F=ZFB=+—HILFE
EITWEEFTE £ B 23,742,008 T (Z
| T4 13,742,000/ 7T) BEREH B
EEFREMBRREERESGZERESE
HSEM(HNERESEAENMM]) -

HEREELEBENEENESRAKRE
FHEINEKE ,E\:fm’élflxﬁ’]fﬁﬁum}\ °

HMERSESXEMNZTNEOIEEIRE
FREEEE MEBEENREASR
EEEEM APV RBEERBENZ
HeEREFE MBEEZHERENIRIE
BrBEFERERERERE BlR:
MEZEERIAMBEEZEFNE (AR
EREEEENZEEMERZFEHER
)& IR R206%(Z F = = F
18.7% ) (Th BRI AT & R BREZEN FE IR & EE &
BUBHAZEERR - AFHMUENE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%nﬂ:%::ﬁ-mwzw
REHE - EFHEE  EAZERED
EEM IR #E }HT‘@EEAZEDIEIE%
EXBEMNZEREEBHATIRESE -
HREEBERESELEMZUKREESES
REREE EFRARBEHRTEL
mHIRRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Customer
Backlog relationship Total
RAEREE BEFRRER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET TFHET FET
31 March 2023 —EB=HF
=A=+-H
Cost at 1 April 2022, net of RZEB- "4
accumulated amortisation ME—H®
A - 0B
REtEE — 7,758 7,758
Amortisation provided during £E P9 85 # &5
the year (note 7) GEY — (2,821) (2,821)
At 31 March 2023 RIFZI=%F
=B=+—H = 4,937 4,937
At 31 March 2023: N_EBZ=HF
=A=+-8:
Cost B A 2,838 16,926 19,764
Accumulated amortisation B it (2,838) (11,989) (14,827)
Net carrying amount IRENVRE = 4,937 4,937
31 March 2022 B fF
=B=+—H
Cost at 1 April 2021, net of RZFE_—&
accumulated amortisation ME—B®
BA - BR
REH — 10,579 10,579
Amortisation provided during 4F P9 1 §5 55 &5
the year (note 7) (B 5E7) — (2,821) (2,821)
At 31 March 2022 RIBEZZHF
=B=+—H — 7,758 7,758
At 31 March 2022: RIEBE-_F
=A=+—8 :
Cost BN 2,838 16,926 19,764
Accumulated amortisation RETE (2,838) (9,168) (12,0086)
Net carrying amount BRENFE — 7,758 7,758
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

EEELEIE D
RS PR

18. INVENTORIES 18. # &

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET FET

Raw materials [R #4 % 260,958 341,165
Work in progress TR 215,861 191,766

Finished goods ey 200,365 196,031
677,184 728,962

19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 19. FEURERFR

2023 2022

—EB=F —F°HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET FET

Accounts receivable & W BR TR 345,113 393,843
The Group's accounts receivable mainly relate to a few REBZERERAEEZEEETRIKE
recognised and creditworthy customers. The credit ERFNVRFEHE - EE8H—MKA0KXE
period is generally for a period of 30 to 90 days (2022: OR(ZEZZHF :30KEWNKXK) - A&H
30 to 90 days). The Group seeks to maintain strict RAOABEKREEEVRFRSFEEZEE &
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise the FEEREERAZREKE @XM Z2E
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by BHAEEEERBTCHER AEHILX
the management of the Group. The Group does not hold MEERERERFTEEARESRIE
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its MR EERER - BWERREERNK
accounts receivable balances. The accounts receivable RBEHXR  AEBRARTRFE EFAE
are non-interest-bearing. At the end of the reporting B RE=RKRE B2 RhLERER TRAEEE62 %
period, 62% (2022: 51%), 12% (2022: 24%) and 22% (ZEZ_%F 51%) 1N2%(ZFE -
(2022: 22%) of the total accounts receivable were due F 24% ) R22% (ZB_Z_4F :22% ) °

from the Group’s largest customer, the second largest
customer and the third largest customer, respectively.
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19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

19. FEBRFR )

REEHRZERRRBBEZEHHN
FRECDITAT -

2023 2022

—E-=% s

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FHET

Within 30 days 30K 268,080 312,515
31 to 60 days 31E60K 69,015 53,137
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 4,413 9,907
Over 90 days 90K k£ 3,605 18,284
345,113 393,843

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. No impairment allowance
has been provided as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 as
management concludes that the expected credit losses
are not significant given the receivable balances are
related to customers for whom there are no recent
history of default and majority of the balances are not
yet past due.

REHRES DR RABREEREETRE
2 UETERRAGEERE - BEXKRE
FRERERRANREFFZANXE
FTE - A ERMRERRMEER TN R
SRS ERBREEE  BEfikIRk
RARREEFGRANGERTEER - B
T I WK BR R A B B AT HA 3 R R SR AT #% 0
ZFHEBERBAEGREREH  KEE
ERABRPCEBRRRBEM  BEHR=
F_-ZHER_BI_F=ZH=+—HIL
HEIRRERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
ZerieZa=1—15

20. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCE, TIME
DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK
BALANCES

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Cash and bank balances HE RIBTHEER 370,250 425,999
Non-pledged time deposits with REERRIFEREE=
original maturity of less than three AR MNERFTEHER
months when acquired 146,280 30,459
Less: Restricted bank balance for BORFEREEOREN
import purchases in Mainland 5 PRl SR 17 45 8%
China (1,143) (617)
Total cash and bank balances HERIRITHEBRIERE 515,387 455,841

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$444,284,000 (2022:
HK$401,653,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for seven days depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and restricted bank balance are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBERR  AEBUARE(TARK])
sHEM IR £ K& iR 17 45 8R 23444,284,000%
TT(Z =T~ Z & :401,653,0005& 75) = A
REMASERRRAEMEN - AMIRE
PR B K S A I BE B FRAR 1) L B 45 BE - S BE
ENEEERTE ALEEENEEZBER
ERBENEEBZRTBARERRA

FRETHREREBARTERNEXZ
FEHRERERMNE AEERKERESE
FEFEECRNEHTHER Lo 5%
FEATE BT AR RERENA) R - SRITAEER
ZRHEBTERIERREFEER T
R R ARG #k 2 3R1T -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21. FE{TERER
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end REEHERZECMERRBEZZBEHN
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BRI WT -
follows:
2023 2022
—EB=F S HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ETT FET
Within 90 days 90K W 361,486 282,095
91 to 180 days 91& 180K 6,761 9,057
181 to 365 days 181&E3656K 2,276 1,417
Over 365 days 365K X E 5,221 7,065
375,744 299,634
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are BHERAZERRN EEH KA
normally settled on credit terms of 45 to 60 days. 45F 60K °
BANKING FACILITIES 22. SRITEREER
As at 31 March 2023, the Group's banking facilities were RIBZ=H=ZRA=+—H  X&EBEMNIR
supported by the corporate guarantees of THEREEUERRABERARNAETHE
HK$1,108,450,000 (2022: HK$989,980,000) executed by AN A R I A B R1,108,450,000% 7T
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company. (ZEZ 4 :989,980,0007) fEx 1 -
As at 31 March 2023, an aggregate amount of the RIB-_=H=A=+—H ' A&EEBEKIR
Group’s banking facilities of HK$622,823,000 (2022: TH FR{EE 28 A& $£622,823,0008 7T
HK$648,557,000) was utilised. (ZE| -4 :648,557,0008TC) °

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

23. Bt & B & H fth FE 4 FIR

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#ET BT

Other payables EMEMTRIEAE 90,878 83,498
Consideration payable (note 34(b)(iv)) FE{HAE (MIFE34(b)(iv)) — 73,958
Accruals FEET & 127,136 134,824
218,014 292,280

Included in other payables were contract liabilities of nil
as at 31 March 2023, HK$2,300,000 as at 31 March
2022 and HK$2,420,000 as at 1 April 2021.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
to deliver sportswear and garments. The decrease (2022:
decrease) in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to
the decrease (2022: decrease) in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of
sportswear and garments at the end of the year.

EHNEEFANEMEMTRELIINR-ISE
ZZHFZHA=+—HAE RIZFZZH
—A=+—H%2300,0008TTAR_E
——F ™A —H%2420,0008 T °

BHNREEREARNEDRER KX
WERRVIEEITAN SR - REZFBZ=ZFMEN
BERV(ZFIZF RS TEZHREF
RAMEBERERMREEREF WD
RBBEARRN(CFEZ2F R
B o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 24. G RIRITE
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
“ECC-F et alak
Effective HK$000 HK$'000
interest rate ~ EMRFIE Maturity — EIH3H TET FET
Current BN
Bank loans RITEF 3.53% t0 5.58% 3.53% £5.568% Within one  —FNZHEEK 544,323 648,557
(2022: 0.87% (ZB8-—%: year or on
to 1.36%) 087%%1.36%)  demand
Non-current  JEENHH
Bank loans RITEFH 558% 5.58% 2024-2025 _—FB_ME — 78,500 —
“EZLF
As at 31 March 2023, bank borrowings of RIFZ=F=ZF=+—H RITER
HK$622,823,000 (2022: HK$648,557,000) were supported 622,823,000 C (Z & - &
by corporate guarantees executed by the Company and 648,557,000 7C) HA LN R RARNAE T
certain subsidiaries of the Company. MEBARZSEILNAEEFRIEXR -
As at 31 March 2023, bank borrowings of RZIBE_=F=ZA=Z+—H R|ITEX
HK$454,123,000 (2022: HK$626,557,000) were 454,123,000 T (Z B - &
denominated in US$. 626,557,000 7T) LETTEHE °
Based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the RIBIBITERZERL  RITEREEE
amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are SEMMTUWT -
analysed as follows:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET TET
Analysed into: DIRR
Within one year or on demand —FERNYEEEK 544,323 648,557
In the second year E_F 15,700 —
In the third to fifth years, inclusive SB=ZHEZFFHAHF
(BREEEME) 62,800 —

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group provides benefits for its employees of its
subsidiary in Indonesia who attain the retirement age of
57 to 58 years (2022: 57 years) based on the provisions
of the Indonesian Job Creation Act Number 11/2020,
Indonesian Government Regulations Number 35/2021,
Collective Labour Agreement and Management Policy
No.001/ENI-SK/IV/2023, through an unfunded pension
plan.

The plan is exposed to salary increase risk and interest
rate risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value
of the defined benefit obligations were carried out at
31 March 2023 by Kantor Konsultan Aktuaria Yusi Dan,
an independent actuary with a licence from the
Indonesia Ministry of Finance, using the projected unit
credit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

25.

EERASE
AEE®AEHIFORAGTEIEREEAE
PELZAEEE11/2020% « ENEBAFEH
%35/2021 R EBABERAKEBEBURSE
001/ENI-SK/IV/20235% + AEEIEHEAE
FEFS7ES8® (ZEZF 57m%) BIKE
RIEBSRMERET -

Zat & R ¥ & £ 7+ LB B M R AR o

EHEGENECRAEZEHNBEEMERED
fE Bt B &R 3R ] % 3 ¥ B B BiKantor
Konsultan Aktuaria Yusi Dani¥ FB 788 &
NEEREGREBEEIR_E_Z=HA
—t+—HEE-

RESHRAAFBZEIERERRAT ¢

2023 2022
—E-=& —E-—f

EN Indonesia EXENfE
Discount rate (%) FIRZEK (%)
Expected rate of salary increase (%) FEETEFEIBRE(%)

PGG PGG
Discount rate (%) IR Z (%)
Expected rate of salary increase (%) TEsTEF &I RZE(%)

7.13 7.50
5.0 5.0
7.10 7.44
6.0 5.0
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25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

25 EERIETE @

RBESHPR  EXBRRZEEHBRE DT

assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is FIRAMT
shown below:
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligation in rate obligation
EEENEE EEENEE
REEM BEEM
LhE EFH GRi) LEETR GR D)
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET TET
2023 e
Discount rate FIRE (1,985) 1 2,330
Future salary increase IR &1 h1 2,355 1 (2,039)
2022 - S - 3
Discount rate IR =E (3,226) 1 4,023
Future salary increase 723K ¥ <& 10 4,087 1 (3,323)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

ERFREDFDREBEEZRERRR

EZREZTEAMERE - SREDMHE
REFBEMBRRAENERL TR —E
ERBRILEMET - REDTRL
RTEBRBAEENERXE  BZFER
RNLBEEAGERRE -

195
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
MBEHRRME(E)

31 March 2023

—E - =H#F=ZH=+—H

25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 25. EEBAEE @
(continued)
The total expenses/(income) recognised in the B REEREARERZH I (I
consolidated income statement in respect of the plan are N)RBENT -
as follows:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET THT
Current service cost HERBRA 2,392 4,656
Past service cost B R B A (3,275) —
Interest cost B B A 257 1,710
Net benefit expenses/(income) BRRAX(RN) R (626) 6,366
Recognised in cost of sales REEERAER (520) 5,330
Recognised in administrative RITE R X R
expenses (106) 1,036
(626) 6,366
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 25. EEBAEE @
(continued)
The movements in the present value of the defined TEBRINESTHEZEHAOT -

benefit obligation are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ETT TET

At beginning of reporting period e R 19,861 20,947
Current service cost HERBRA 2,392 4,656
Past service cost B R B A (3,275) —
Interest cost B B A 257 1,710
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEBEER(KE) 3,467 (7,788)
Benefits paid B ER (16) (104)
Exchange differences EERER (573) 440
At end of reporting period RIBEHR 22,113 19,861

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MERXKE(E)
e i 1

25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 25. EHRBIET =

(continued)
The movements in the defined benefit obligation are as EREEINSTZEEBAOT
follows:
2023 —F-=
Pension cost charged Remeasurement (gains)/losses
to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
REBRNBZBHRERE Hft2Eba2 ENHE (K /FE
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from arising from included Exchange
included in changes in  changes in  changes in in other differences
1 April Service Net the income Benefits demographic financial ~ experience  comprehensive on a foreign 31 March
2022 cost interest  statement paid assumptions assumptions adjustments income plan
ADBRES MBRRED CRIEED
S 3 HARER EEZRE EEZRE  EEIRE O HAHMSE  RAHEN
EE-B  EEEEx  ASEE 2t ERER 29 29 29 k#zhdt  ERER ZA=t+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
Defined benefit obligation EERHER 19,861 (883) 257 (626) (16) = 2,045 1422 3467 (573) 2,113
2022 - =i
Pension cost charged Remeasurement (gains)/losses
to profit or loss in other comprehensive income
REERNBZBHRERE EfteEUEZ ENHE (KR /BB
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial
changes changes changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from  arising from arising from included Exchange
included in changes in  changes in  changes in inother differences
1 April Service Net  the income Benefits  demographic financial ~ experience  comprehensive  on a foreign 31 March
2021 cost interest statement paid  assumptions  assumptions  adjustments income plan 2022
ADBRED MBBRRED LRAZED
ZFI-% FARER EAZRE EEIRE EAZRE  HAAMSE  EAHEN  Z3-ZF
mE-B  EBREx  HSEE 2t ENEF g 2y 2y kEzhig  EREZE ZA=+-H
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TET TET TET
Defined benefit obligation EEEAEL 20,947 4,65 1,710 6,366 (104) - (6,188) (1,600) (7,788) 440 19,861
The Group provides defined benefits to its eligible AEBBBEERERARFERENES
employees in Indonesia through unfunded pension plans. EREERHETERT -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

25. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 25. EEBAEE @
(continued)
Expected contributions to be made in the future years ARBFE2EHEBNEETHEHHEREBER
out of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: W
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ETT FHET
Within the next 12 months KE12BBE A 662 218
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 340 653
Between 2 and 5 years 2Fb5E 2,108 1,352
Between 5 and 10 years 5E 106 12,341 7,210
Over 10 years 105k 270,824 731,915
Total expected payments TERR I RAERR 286,275 741,348
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation of EXHNEKRPGCRIBEHARNEREIE
EN Indonesia and PGG at the end of the reporting period EFYERBI748FE(ZF Z Z F
is 17.48 years (2022: 22.81 years). 22.81%) o

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BERRMI(E)

31 March 2023

—E - =H#F=ZH=+—H

26. DEFERRED TAX

The movement in deferred tax liabilities of the Group

during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated

26. IEERIE
AEBRENNWEERBEEEESHUT

EEREEE
Withholding
taxes on

undistributed

Losses
available
for offsetting

tax Asset profits of PRC against future
depreciation revaluation Others  subsidiaries taxable profits Total
TERBAT  FRREH
RARENZ  BAERERR
MERBEITE BEEfR Hity BiR  ENZER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTER TER FTER TER TER
At 1 April 2021 RZIBE-_—-&EMA—H 888 28,053 1,762 7,853 — 38,556
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the ~FNERARARITR/
consolidated income statement (Gt REERIE
during the year (note 10) (BzE10) 3,676 (1,517) (708) 1,000 — 2,451
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29) s — B A E (ME29) — 7,966 — — (6,033) 1,933
Withholding tax on repatriation of HE T B EHAIEN
earnings from subsidiaries in the PRC ~ JB1# - — - (827) - (827)
Exchange realignment ERHAE — 1,178 — — 33 1,211
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RIZZZF=A=+-H
kZZBZ-_FWMA-H 4,564 35,680 1,054 8,026 (6,000) 43,324
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the ~FRNELAKERITIR/
consolidated income statement during (3t A\) KHERRIE
the year (note 10) (HzE10) 6,723 (1,432) (708) 2,221 - 6,804
Withholding tax on repatriation of HE T A B EHAIEN
eamings from subsidiaries in the PRC ~ FII# = = = (467) = (467)
Exchange realignment ERAE = (1,053) = = = (1,03)
At 31 March 2023 RIZZ=F=A=+-H 11,287 33,195 346 9,780 (6,000) 48,608
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings accrued after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rates are 5% or 10% (2022: 5% or
10%). In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends
expected to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made
an assessment based on the factors which included the
dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capital required for the Group's operations in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$343,160,000 (2022: HK$294,255,000).

The Group has aggregate estimated tax losses arising in
Mainland China, Indonesia, Vietham and Hong Kong of
HK$73,014,000 (2022: HK$43,875,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
Company and the respective subsidiaries in which the
losses arose. Apart from the tax losses for which
deferred tax asset of HK$6,000,000 (2022:
HK$6,000,000) has been recognised at the end of the
reporting period, no other deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of these losses as the directors
consider it is not probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which these tax losses can be
utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
estimated tax losses of HK$33,412,000 (2022:
HK$4,812,000) that will expire within five years from the
date the losses arose. Other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements (cun inued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

i FE WL IE ()

EEREE&FE B

RIBPEBE - RABEIKEER ZIMNEE
BEREOIIFREEERZEERHEEK
10% 78K - ZRMER_ZTT/N\F—H—
BEXN  WEAR-_EFLtE+ZA=+
—BBEEZEBT - MPEXEEIHE
BEEZEAEEIIRBEEL - AR BRE
HERENHRERE AEEZERARER
5%510% (ZFEZZHF : 5%3K10%) -
A ZETRRERIIBARM® -
FINF-—BA—HEEENRATEHREK
BRSMMNTENRE  EEC1EaER
EBRAEADRRRAEHLEMTEARN
LEBEESRKFERE - RERERLERE
BENPERERNBAR 2R ERN TR
EREBEEE S A#343,160,0008TT (ZF
T T4 1 294,255,00087C) ©

AEBRPEKAE HE  HEhk&EBE
2T RIBEEEEEA73,014,0008 7T
(Z=/BZ — & :43,875,00087T) ' TR
REARNARSELEHBERBLATZH
BEZRRET - RRBEHREEDETE
3 18 & 6,000,000/ TL (T — — £
6,000,000 70) 2 RMIEEBEN  HRES
RAEHEBERR AT RO R ERKH
ZEMEER RNEERZEHEEER

MIEERIEEE - RERREHBECERS
=t % 18 &5 4833,412,0008 T (Z & — =
F 4,812,000 7T) - HBEEBEEELZH
ERAFANEE - Ht G ERPEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

27. ISSUED CAPITAL

27. ERTERAE

2023 2022
—B=H Sl =
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET THT
Authorised: BT
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,0008%
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares (ZFZ—&F
of HK$0.01 each 10,000,000,000f%)
FKREE0IEITZ
B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRHR :
533,800,000 (2022: 533,800,000) 533,800,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (ZFZ—#F :
533,800,000f%)
FKHEE.01EITZ
B 5,338 5,338

A summary of movements in the Company's issued

capital is as follows:

AARBBITRANEHERNT |

Number of
ordinary
shares in Share
issue Issued capital premium Total
EETEER
g8 EBRTEREF R fn (8 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FH FHR
At 1 April 2021 RZBZ—FMA—H 532,000,000 5,320 566,314 571,634
Issue of shares (Note) BTk () 1,800,000 18 7,596 7,614
At 31 March 2022 and RZBZZHF
31 March 2023 ZB=+—Hk
—BT-F
=B=+—H 533,800,000 5,338 573,910 579,248
Note: .

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 3 November 2021
entered into between the Group and one of the vendors for the
acquisition by the Group of 100% equity interest in PGG, on
9 December 2021, 1,800,000 shares were issued for cash at a
subscription price of HK$4.23 per share to this vendor following the

completion of the acquisition. The details of the acquisition are set 29 °

out in note 29 to the financial statements.

REBEAEEHEEA 2 —HALBEWEPGGHI100%
BiEMIIIHERA-_SE-_—F+—H=ANWR
EiHZE RZFEZ—F+ZHH " 1,800,000
BHONRKE TR ERABESRIZETETT
ZEANRRES WEFEINMBERRMGE
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28. RESERVES

29.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value
of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) in August 2003, and the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor and the existing 1,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each credited as fully paid, at par.

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations,
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain portion of their profits after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve, until the balance of the
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus reserve
may be used to offset against accumulated losses.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 6 December 2021, the Group acquired a 100%
equity interest in PGG from independent third parties for
an aggregate consideration of HK$9,481,000. PGG is
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sportswear
and garments. The acquisition was to expand the
Group’s manufacturing base and increase its production
capacity in Indonesia.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBEHRME(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

28. {#1&

29.

FEERFEERBEFEZFESR
REBBFBERUBRRPZEGED
BERZET -

FEEERFEREEARIRBE-ST=
FN\BZEBEA([EEDFBRBREL
ANRAEERSR EREETZAAR
IR A EE K& 3R A 1,000,000 5 R E{E0.01
BTEREEANRIFBERNDEBZESE -

REEETERL - EREZMONEL
BIARE THMOMNRREBEN (RHEE
RARPIEE) BBREATERGERE EE
ZRENEREIESBEMELRL0% -
EERTERLMEETRIBRRT - &
ERBRETREREZRESGE-

XBSH
RIFBZ—F+ZANHE AEE@EBIL
FE=HWHEPGCHI100%&RHE  BREA
9,481,000/ 7T - PGGI FE B iR 2£ &k B
REUEKRES - ARWEEEERAELEEH
MESEMITIRSEENENES -

& — €20z Hoday |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 29. ¥BEH=
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of PGGRIKEHIHANAIHIEERAREN
PGG as at the date of acquisition were as follows: RNFEMOT
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
U EE R RE SR Y
NEE
Notes HK$'000
B &F THET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 13 25,990
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 14(a) 36,158
Inventories 78 368
Accounts receivable JFE I BR =X 762
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEffRIE - &K
H 1t FE I R IE 4,154
Cash and bank balances R& RIRITHEER 22,358
Accounts payable FE 14 BR IR (3,134)
Accruals liabilities and other payables* et & 18 K H fih FE (T FUIE* (46,328)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFTEIRITER (19,761)
Interest-bearing borrowings from the then PGGE R EA B 7 1
related parties of PGG FTERER (12,567)
Tax payable FE T H1E (328)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREERE 26 (1,933)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value B AT IR AT AT A
BERFE 5,739
Goodwill on acquisition RBRINEE 16 3,742
9,481
Satisfied by: AT -
Initial cash consideration VBEERE 11,775
Less: Adjustment from final payment BRI (2,294)
9,481
* Included in the balance is an amount due to the Group of ¥ %g’%@’%ﬂgﬁxﬁ5’2’%1‘55'000'000%7%
US$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$39,251,000) for the (18 % 1439,251,00078 7T b4 1 58 PGGT

W B SE R IR S T BT RO AR 1 o

subscription of new shares to be issued by PGG upon
completion of the acquisition.

Both the fair value and gross contractual amount of the RWKEHE  BREFNAFEERESLY
accounts receivable as at the date of acquisition & FE19%762,0008 7T °
amounted to HK$762,000.
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continuea)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,117,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses in
the consolidated income statement.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of PGG is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

29. ¥ 8w
AREBMARKBEER 5 KK
1,117,000 T - ZERZ A AE I ER
YW ANGERERANNITHREX -

B ERNBEEY N AMASHREENE
TH0ER -

BRBBPGCHRERESTAT -

HK$'000
TET
Net cash consideration paid ENEHEENREFHE (9,481)
Cash consideration receivable arising from adjustment BRA&ANMRARELZ
of final payment BUIRERE (2,294)
Cash and bank balances acquired T g 2 I & R IR 1T 45 8% 22,358
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FARBEREEINZ
cash flows from investing activities HeEneEzRiesk
ReEEEBRNTE 10,583
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in cash AAARBREEE 2
flows from operating activities RERMEZWBERZ A (1,117
9,466

Since the acquisition, PGG contributed HK$6,504,000 to
the Group’s revenue and HK$640,000 to the consolidated
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2022, the revenue of the Group
and the consolidated profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2022 would have been
HK$3,766,066,000 and HK$275,648,000, respectively.

BWEBLK  PGCAAEBEE_S_—
FZA=+—BHILEFENEEZKANETER
6,504,0008 7T AAEENGEEHIE
[E640,0003% 7T -

HWEHRBE_S-__#=A=+—H
IEFEEZEET AEBEEZS "
FZA=+—BHILEFENEEKRAKE
& & F 3 9 Bl A3,766,066,000% T &
275,648,00058 T °

& — €20z Hoday |enuuy

EEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

30. ASSET ACQUISITIONS THROUGH 30. ERKNEHBARETEE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES e BE
(a On 1 May 2022, the Group acquired a 100% equity (a RIZBZZHFREA—H XEBEK

interest in Beyond Top, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
together with its only wholly-owned subsidiary
incorporated in Vietnam, at a final consideration of
US$6,692,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$52,500,000). Beyond Top is an investment
holding company whose only wholly-owned
subsidiary was principally engaged in the
manufacture of shoes in Vietnam before ceasing
operation in 2009.

Management accounted for the transaction as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The cost of
acquisition is allocated to individual identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired company on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
acquisition as summarised below:

fEBeyond Top (—FRREBHER R
HEAMRIINERLE)M100%
BRE EREM—-REERIINE
BB AT R#EA{E%6,692,000
3= 7 (18 % 1 £952,500,0003% 7T) °
Beyond Top— RKEEZK AT -
HBE—MWE2ERNBABDRZEEA
FEEIRENITEAUmRELE
E$

ERERZRIREERAGBNK
BAR - KWERARBEBLAAR
WEHHRNERAFESEERS
MBEAHNEEREE R
T

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

MU R R RE SR Y

NEE

Notes HK$'000

Fd &F THET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 13 24,904

Right-of-use assets FEREESE 14(a) 29,275

Cash and bank balances R RIRITHEER 8

Other payable Hith FE (T RIE (6)

Tax payable FEfT R 1E (1,681)
Total identifiable net liabilities at BN FEH BRI E #

fair value BERTEE 52,500

Satisfied by: L TEA
Cash consideration HERE 52,500
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30. ASSET ACQUISITIONS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(@)  (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

30. E%ﬂiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁé
B

(a) (#&)
FHEKBBENERESERESTAT -

HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HEKE (52,500)
Cash and bank balances acquired FTis g 2 IR & R IR1T 45 8% 8
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included T ANAREEZEZRE
in cash flows used in investing activities MEZRERRS®
FEEERLFE (52,492)

(b)  On 1 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Guangdong Dalian from JBFIXGAE 5H
R/~ 8, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang
Yongbiao, a director and shareholder of the
Company, at a final consideration of
RMB59,877,000 (equivalent to HK$74,151,000).

by MRIB__HF=H—H AxEEEX
NEEERREEKELELERS
HRPIKEAE S B RA A KB ERE
BR100% B - REREAARE
59,877,0007T (1% 1R 74,151,00058
JT) °

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)
ZerieZa=1—15

30. ASSET ACQUISITIONS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

Management accounted for the transaction as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The cost of
acquisition is allocated to individual identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired company on

30. EBKBHEBARETEE

B @

() (&)
EEERZRZBREEREAENK
BAR - WERARBEREATIR
KEABNERAFESRERS

MERAUBNEEREE @A

the basis of their relative fair values at the date of T
acquisition as summarised below:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RIEEREDZRN
2FEE
Notes HK$'000
Ffs 5% FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKREE 13 51,614
Right-of-use assets EREESE 14(a) 11,641
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRE B2k
receivables* Hih el sR1E* 9,967
Cash and bank balances H& R IRBITEER 1,088
Tax payable B RIE (159)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value &2\ (& %! BR #9 7T 25 Al
BERETE 74,151
Satisfied by: HIXTEA
Cash consideration HEKE 74,151
* Included in the balance is an amount of HK$8,857,000 * EROEREREXREEENRE

due from Mr. Huang Yongbiao.

8,857,000 T °
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30. ASSET ACQUISITIONS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

31.

(continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

acquisition is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEBRWE(R)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

éﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé

B &)

BERBBENRERESFTNOT -

HK$'000

TET

Cash consideration HERE (74,151)

Cash consideration payable recorded in other payables &t A E fth F& < 0I5 i9 FE £

RERE 74,151

Cash and bank balances acquired FTig g 2 I & R IR 1T 45 8% 1,088
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FFARBEEEEZRER
cash flows from investing activities ExREAREEEEER

MNRE 1,088

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

During the year, non-current deposits of
HK$48,236,000 (2022: HK$14,779,000) were
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

During the year end 31 March 2022, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities of HK$21,114,000 and
HK$21,114,000, respectively, in respect of a
lease arrangement for a plant.

1. GEEERERM:E

(a) FEFRERS
(i)  F W IERE &R £48,236,000
BIL(ZEZ 4 :14,779,000
%E)EE SEYE BER
B

iy ME-_E-_—_#=H=+—H
IEFE  AEER—BEREH
EXHNRNFERESRBEFERE
EEREEE{E21,114,0008
T %21,114,0003 7T °

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . BB
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

ARERERMFE @

METHELENEEEH

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)

210

M= & T Sc0c Hodey |enuuy

activities

Interest-bearing

Lease bank
liabilities borrowings
HEasE FFTRIRITEMR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
At 1 April 2021 R-ZB-_—FMB—H 9,092 428,438
Changes from financing cash MEREREEH)
flows (8,743) 197,050
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — M BN E — 19,761
New lease miEE 21,114 —
Interest expenses *'J BERAX 587 —
Interest paid classified as NEARREREMEN
operating cash flows ERFR (587) —
Exchange realignment bE A B 348 3,308
At 31 March 2022 and RZFB-Z_#=RB=+—H
1 April 2022 A_EBE__F£MA—H 21,811 648,557
Changes from financing cash MEREREEH
flows (9,558) (27,393)
Interest expenses *'J BERAX 470 —
Interest paid classified as NEAREREMEN
operating cash flows EFR (470) -
Exchange realignment BE 2 2E (450) 1,659
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=#=A=+—H 11,803 622,823




31.

32.

33.

EAGLE NICE (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDINGS LIMITED  FiE 35 (EABR) =R B IR A &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the

Notes to Financial Statements (cuminued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

SERERERMETE @

(c) HERERHESE
FARERERNEERESRHE

statement of cash flows is as follows: BT :
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Within operating activities R ETEE N 635 937
Within financing activities RELEEE N 9,558 8,743
10,193 9,680

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. ZAREE
The Group did not have any significant contingent RIBER  AEBEM B EMAERIBEEZ
liabilities not provided for at the end of the reporting BEARARER(ZEZIZF #]&) -
period (2022: Nil).
As at 31 March 2023, corporate guarantees to banks to RIBI=ZF=A=+—H ARIEAX
the extent of HK$1,108,450,000 (2022: HK$989,980,000) AEETHERA M@IRIMTIRMH
were given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of 1,108,450,000 B T (Z B ZZ F
the Company for banking facilities granted to the 989,980,000 T) NI ER - UNEETF
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company, which KRB RARNBETHEBLENIRITER
were utilised to the extent of approximately FE HARBFEHEHPEREH ALY
HK$622,823,000 (2022: HK$648,557,000) at the end of 622,823,000 0 (Z & = — &F
the reporting period. 648,557,000 7T) °
COMMITMENTS 33. *&iE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEBRBERRZEREENT
end of the reporting period:
2023 2022
—EB=F —F°HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET THT
Contracted, but not provided for: EFTHEREHE :
Renovation of factories and REEEMEBRE -
purchases of items of machinery BEHEKLREER
and equipment for the
production bases 96,780 91,015

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the
following material transactions with related parties
during the year:

34.

FAEALXRS

(a) FRRAMBHRREMEIFROR
2o REBERFNEFAEANLE
TTIERRS :

2022
Notes HK$'000
B 5% FET
A related company —ZARNBEEERE
indirectly controlled by a M HIM
substantial shareholder of BAEAXRF :
the Company:
Rental expenses* HeRX* (i) 7.741 7,704
Service fee R#% & (ii) 8,850 7,789
A director and shareholder —&AABEEF
of the Company: %R
Interest income FEKA (iii) 60 32
Substantial shareholder ARNBEIEERE
of the Company:
Service fee R#& & (iv) 102 640
Notes: fft 5

(i) The Group entered into lease agreements with Pouyuen
Vietnam Company Limited (“Pouyuen Vietnam”), a
related company indirectly controlled by Yue Yuen, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, for the rental
of (i) a plant at a monthly rate of US$71,184 for a term
of three years commencing on 1 June 2018 and
expired on 31 May 2021, which was renewed on 1
June 2021 with unchanged monthly rate of US$71,184
and a term of three years commencing on 1 June
2021 and will expire on 31 May 2024; and (ii) a plant at
a monthly rate of US$11,094 for a term of two years
and six months commencing on 1 December 2020 and
expired on 31 May 2023.

(i) AEBE-ZARNBEERRBT
i # &= & B B & A SPouyuen
Vietnam Company Limited
([ Pouyuen Vietnam |) zT 3L F & 3
- UEB—HAMERT1,184%TT
HWEE  BZF—/\FXB—HE
AP=F UTR-ZF-_—FAHA
=+—BHE®R ZHOARZZFZ—
FRNEBE—BE&EHN BHEF-ER
71,184% T B ZFZ—F N
A—BEERER-_ZB_MNERA
E+—HERRBBP=F Xi)—HE
BEAN04ETHME  HO B
_E_FE+_A—HEERRZE
Z_ZERA=+—HERABEME
NER -
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a) (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(i) (continued)

* Right-of-use assets of HK$7,755,000 (2022:
HK$15,235,000) and lease liabilities of
HK$7,908,000 (2022: HK$15,377,000) related
to the leases with related parties were
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2023. During
the year ended 31 March 2023, depreciation of
right-of-use assets of HK$7,510,000 (2022:
HK$7,449,000) and finance costs on lease
liabilities of HK$242,000 (2022: HK$330,000)
were recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(ii) The service fee to Pouyuen Vietnam was made on a
basis mutually agreed by both parties.

(iii) The interest income was charged at 4.35% per annum
on loan to Mr. Huang Yongbiao, a director and
shareholder of the Company.

(iv) The service fee paid to Pou Chen Corporation (“Pou
Chen"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, was
charged on actual cost incurred.

[tem (ii) above also constitutes continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MEERRE(R)

31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

4. FEATR S @

(a)

(&)
MisE : (4)
(i) (%)
* EEEALTHEERNER
1# & 7,755,000 T(Z B
— Z £ :15,235,000% JT) &
FAE&157,908,0008 TT( =&
Z 4 :15,377,0008 75) R
ZEZ=#=ZF=+—HHK
REMERLERBR -HE
_E::E_H_+ H1E
FEN FHEESERNE
7,510,000 TT(ZF 24
7,449,000 T RTAEEEN
B E B A242,0008 7T (ZF
Z Z 4 :330,0007T) R4
AU RER -

(i) 45 F Pouyuen VietnamM IRFE B i &
FRBZEELX -

(i) MA—ZEARBAEEREREXK
ERMZER Z%UE'HSU\&@E*UK
4.35% WL BY

(ivi ME—ZEAREETERRENTER
NERAR(TEX]) XNNRBE
BRERELNBARE -

EXXE)BEIRE R £ iR B 5 14A
EfEENSERERS -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

in accrued liabilities and other
is an amount due to Pouyuen
Vietnam of HK$5,738,000 (2022:
HK$4,121,000), which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included
payables

Included in accrued liabilities and other
payables is an amount due to Pou Chen of
HK$120,000, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand as at
31 March 2022 and was settled during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

which was

Details of the Group's loan to a director and
related accrued interests as at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 15 to
the financial statements.

Included in accrued liabilities and other payables
at 31 March 2022 is a consideration payable of
HK$73,958,000 to MFIXKAEB ZERA A
which is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Yongbiao, a director and a shareholder of the
Company, for the acquisition of Guangdong
Dalian on 1 March 2022 which was settled
during the vyear. Further details of this
acquisition are included in note 30(b) to the
financial statements.

The directors are the key management personnel of

the Group. Details of their

remuneration are

disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

M. BAEAETRG @

(b) EABIEANLTZKREFLEER
() EtaErEMEMTKIECE
F& £t Pouyuen VietnamBJ Zx 18
5,738,000 T (ZHF Z 24
4,121,000 7T) ' 2R IE A &
BR REREREKEE-

(il EtaEREMEMFIECE
F& 4 8 B HY 3k 18120,00058
T RRERIEZ_F=A
—t+—HARER REKE
REXKEE EREEZE
—=H=ZB=1+—HILEFEW

+ ==
45 -

(i) RESHPR AEEED—RE
ERHEZERREREER
ZHBHEHNMBHRERMEFES -

(v, RZEZZHF=H=+—H8"
EstaBRkEMEMRESRE
RIBE-F=H—HKEE
REBMEMALNAESREE
BXREEELEBRETREFK
hEBEZERABDNRKE
73,958,000/ 7T * KB ER
ERNEE - BRKENE—D
HIEFNR MBI ERMEE30D) ©

(c) EXERAEEZEEEEAE -®
FFEN 2 5 15 10 B 85 R R MY SRS
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Financial assets

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

35. &M T H 748

ERTHRTERKSHROKREENT

THEE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost; REBEBATENEREE -
Accounts receivable & W BR #R 345,113 393,843
Financial assets included in FPAEMRE ke kH
prepayments, deposits and other EKRRIBN SR EE
receivables 13,981 21,741
Restricted bank balance Z IR R1T A BR 1,143 617
Cash and bank balances HeRIRITHER 515,387 455,841
875,624 872,042
Financial liabilities Bt =R
E-=4 —Eoo
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: IREHMAIENSRIEE ¢
Accounts payable F& {1 BR =X 375,744 299,634
Financial liabilities included in FFANEGtEEREMEN
accrued liabilities and other HENEHERE
payables 59,898 128,238
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRIBITER 622,823 648,557
Lease liabilities HESE 11,803 21,811
1,070,268 1,098,240
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
¥ =HFZ/F=+—H

35.

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The directors consider the carrying amounts of all
current portion of financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost approximate to their fair
values as at the end of the reporting period largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments. The
fair value of non-current portion of interest-bearing bank
borrowings has been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as accounts receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, a restricted bank balance, accounts payable,
financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other
payables and lease liabilities, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
liquidity risk and credit risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest
rates.

35.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risk. The interest-bearing bank borrowings and cash
and bank balances are stated at amortised cost and not
revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the
income statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s net profit
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BBERRWE(E)

31 March 2023
—F-=ZF=-HF=1+—H

36. WHRBEE 2 BIFEMXBR

/43 )
\’/{5/

MERRE &)
FEEEHEELERIEEEUERE
HARER - st BRIRTERRBEERIRT
ERREENANR  MAGEREMR -
FRHBBARZHREmRLE BN
EELEFLUER -

TRITAEBGA (FIREEYE)H
FEARHE A REH (TEEHEE
MR ) 2 SR -

Increase in

interest rate Decrease in

(basis points) net profit

FUZEEm (EE) o IR

HK$'000

FET

2023 —EBZ=H 100 5,201

2022 —_EB-_-F 100 5,415
Foreign currency risk 4 EE & b

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from a substantial portion of sales or
purchases by operating units in United States dollars
("US$"”) and RMB. As the foreign currency risk arising
from sales and purchases can be set off with each other
given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US$, the
Group believes its exposure to exchange rate risk is
minimal. It is the policy of the Group to continue
maintaining the balance of its sales and purchases in the
same currency. However, as the functional currency of
the PRC subsidiaries is RMB and the Group’s financial
statements are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will
be a translation credit/debit to the exchange fluctuation
reserve as a result of RMB appreciation/depreciation.
The majority of the Group’s operating assets are located
in Mainland China and denominated in RMB.

AEEARRZEKER - B RERAE
DHEEEMMUET ([ET)) RAREE
TEEES dHREBTRIXTHI B8
EEZIMNERRR AT ERKE - AEEHE
= HAMNEERERM - AEB SR ERERFIL
HREBETEEZ FEBER - A - B
RAEENEABUARERNESEE R
AEEZMBERDUBTEEH  BAR
e RESTELEFANBREEX
REEENERRE AEBERLIEE
BEEHURHPBEAE  EUANRBEE-
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBERRME(R)
31 March 2023
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors the
foreign exchange exposures and will consider hedging
the significant foreign currency exposures should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities):

36.

HBERBERZBRABR

=
\«{5/

SMEERLBE (&)
AEB B EISIER PR - R B
BREBRINERRE L EERHERH T
EARHERE -

TRITAEERHNHAREERRR

ERFTIB)ZHREHBHREKEER
BEAFEZE)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
exchange rate net profit
EXEH wuFE N,
(TFEK) GR )
HK$'000
FET
2023 B =
If HK$ strengthens against RMB HETREAREAE 3% (1,356)
If HK$ weakens against RMB HMBTREARERE (3%) 1,356
2022 B F
If HK$ strengthens against RMB HETEAREAE 3% (805)
If HK$ weakens against RMB HETEARBEE (3%) 805
Liquidity risk mENE S EE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and the projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities. The
directors have reviewed the Group’s working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and determined that the
Group has no significant liquidity risk.

FEEEREEERBHESRETAER
RESHRZEAR ZETEEEEBER
TEREMEE (WRKERR 2B
o UREETRZEEMER -

FEEZBERAFBRTERREAMR
THRAGE ERESHEHREBREREN
ZHEKFE  EFXERTAEENEESR
RERBES R -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WEREMERE ZEHERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) mENEERAM &)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as RBEHER  AEBRBESLHRITALGR
at the end of the reporting period, based on the HEZESHMABENHBEROT ¢

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On demand
or within 1to b
1 year years Total
i
—FR 1E55 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
2023 —FE=
Accounts payable FE < BR 3R 375,744 = 375,744
Financial liabilities included in SN AEREM
accrued liabilities and other & 1+ SR IE Y & il
payables =N 58,529 — 58,529
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* 3 BT E > 548,783 84,967 633,750
Lease liabilities HE&E 9,148 2,970 12,118
992,204 87,937 1,080,141
2022 -
Accounts payable FE < BRFXR 299,634 — 299,634
Financial liabilities included in AR EERHAM
accrued liabilities and other & < SR I8 19 <& Rl
payables =L 128,238 — 128,238
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* 3 BRITE > 648,557 — 648,557
Lease liabilities HE&E 10,201 12,340 22,541
1,086,630 12,340 1,098,970
* As at 31 March 2023, included in interest-bearing bank * RIFZI=ZF=ZF=+—H s ERTE
borrowings were bank loans of HK$387,323,000 (2022: FET N8R 1T & 7£387,323,000%8 T (Z &
HK$156,600,000) containing a repayment on demand clause — 4 :156,600,000E7TT) - BEEEKE
giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at BHRER BFEFERERGEKREERN
any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above TR Eit - i ERFEBERME - &ZFE
maturity profile, these amounts are classified as ‘‘on EHRPBEAEEXR - BELREERE
demand”. Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand BHRR BEFRAR RTERFTERI12E
clause, the directors do not believe that the bank loans will AR2KE - WRARTERGLREE
be called in their entirety within 12 months, and they M RSN EEES  ARF/HR
consider that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance ZEUTERZEL FAEBRUYBERK
with the maturity dates as set out in the respective HEBNMBRL AEEETERZR
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the WER BEENSEH  URAKEER
financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the RESMEEMAENER - RIBRITE
financial statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan A& R =% % IR 17 B 7387,323,000%% 7T
covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact that the (ZEZZH :156,600,00087T) R &
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time. —=EFE)\A(ZEZF B =HFN
In accordance with the terms of the bank loans, these bank B)EIH -

loans of HK$387,323,000 (2022: HK$156,600,000) will mature
by August 2023 (2022: April 2023).

Y= & T £¢0¢ Hodey |enuuy
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

36. WHREMREE 2 BIERKEK

(&)

EERE
AEHEEARIREERFNE=T7E
TRE - AEEFHBEURRATARZH
FMBEERETEEEE - o BRFIEAE
ERTEFFERR -

RERERFEEER
TRENERAEENFERRNEE
BERrkESEERR FTEERAHER
(BRIFEEMERTERANERNSERR
HENNBERTES)  kR=ZB=+—
AFERERD T - ESINEREERE
TREEMRKREE-

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@A
BEHEE
BB SHEBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
E—ME SEEBE F=ZEER @BEAE nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FHET
2023 ZEIZE
Accounts receivable* & Wi BR 3R - - - 345,113 345,113
Financial assets included in AAAEMRE - REK
prepayments, deposits and other Hih BB &7
receivables BE
— Normal** — EE** 13,981 = = = 13,981
Restricted bank balance F IR HIIR1T 48R
— Not yet past due — K@ 1,143 - - - 1,143
Cash and bank balances RE&RBITER
— Not yet past due — K@ 515,387 - - - 515,387
530,511 - = 345,113 875,624
2022 -~ Sl 3
Accounts receivable* JE W BR JR — — — 393,843 393,843
Financial assets included in AAAEMRE - REK
prepayments, deposits and other HtEWRIBR € /b
receivables BE
— Normal** — EE** 21,741 — — — 21,741
Restricted bank balance IR HIRIT R
— Not yet past due — R 617 — — — 617
Cash and bank balances ReRIRTHER
— Not yet past due — R H 455,841 — — — 455,841
478,199 — — 393,843 872,042
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the

simplified approach for impairment allowance is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

* %

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had certain
interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated in United
States dollars. The interest rates of these instruments
are based on the LIBOR with a tenor of one month,
which will cease to be published after 30 June 2023.
Replacement of the benchmark rates of these
instruments from LIBOR to an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR") has yet to commence but it is expected that
there will be renegotiations of terms in the future.
During the transition, the Group is exposed to the
following risks:

° Parties to the contract may not reach agreement in
a timely manner as any changes to the contractual
terms require the agreement of all parties to the
contract

° Additional time may be needed for the parties to
the contract to reach agreement as they may
renegotiate terms which are not part of the
interest rate benchmark reform (e.g., changing the
credit spread of the bank borrowings due to
changes in credit risk of the Group)

o The existing fallback clause included in the
instruments may not be adequate to facilitate a
transition to a suitable RFR

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. WERBREEZHERKE

M d = “& = €¢0z Hodey |enuuy

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)

Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

The Group will continue to monitor the development of
the reform and take proactive measures for a smooth
transition.

The information about financial instruments based on an

interbank offered rate that has yet to transition to an
alternative benchmark rate is as follows:

As at 31 March 2023

(42 )
\/{%/

FIRBEENE®)
AEEREEZVIRENEER - WA
EHmERERFRAE -

ERBRITEAXFEAEEHRBEES
REENRZEMTHEZERNOT

R-ZEB_=f=ZA=+—H

Non-derivative
financial
liabilities —
carrying value
ETEEMEE -
IREE

HK$'000

TFET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
— United States dollar LIBOR

FTEIRITER
— XTMBRITRAEFRMEFN X 69,473

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. Capital includes bank borrowings and equity
attributable to owners of the parent. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
total current assets divided by total current liabilities.
The Group’s policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.
As at 31 March 2023, the current ratio was 1.3 (2022:
1.3).

BEXxEE
AEBEAEE2TEEERREARE
HEEUFEREELEZEN  UABE
RHERERFRERKT  UAHEEBRM
XRHERERSKREREHR-

AEEREKERTIEHRERREEZ
BESHEREEERNEERELHAR -&
AEFRVRITERABLBDERE AELE
o RERRAEEARNEE  ANEETIEE
ARBEIMNFREZEE PRAEREZEES
AEBETHE REES_=ZFK_F
_ZHE=-ZBR=+—HIEFEN FHER
EARAZEE BESEFLEESE-

AEBELBURE L E (MR ENE ERRUAR
MBEEHE EREELR -AEHZK
RAEBMEBLLEREFMIL EZKFE - R
“EZZH=ZAZ=Z+—8 RELEAH
13(ZBZZ2%F :1.3)
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

37.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRMWE(E)
31 March 2023
—E - =HF=/H=+—H

FRBRMBRAR

BRARBRBEHRRNHMBRIRN
BT :

2023 2022
—E-=fF —E-CHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRAE ZKE 43,368 43,368
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Due from subsidiaries FE WK B~ B FIE 3,015,964 2,768,992
Prepayments Fa T FRIE 541 385
Cash and bank balances B & IRITHEE 876 586
Total current assets MENBEMHE 3,017,381 2,769,963
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Due to subsidiaries N NI ] 1,943,307 1,702,676
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIBITER 157,000 156,600
Tax payable & R 18 739 739
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 2,101,046 1,860,015
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEESRE 916,335 909,948
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowing FFRIBITER 78,500 —
Net assets EEFE 881,203 953,316
EQUITY BX
Issued capital BERITRA 5,338 5,338
Reserves (note) EXERNED) 875,865 947,978
Total equity BEARBE 881,203 953,316
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

38.

POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

37. X B BIRRRR @

Note: BEzE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AKAFREZHMEDNT -
Share
premium Capital Retained
account reserve profits Total
B {7
HER BEXRHE JEEH st
Notes  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FET TET FET
At 1 April 2022 RIBZ-_HFMEBE—H 566,314 43,088 324,033 933,435
Issue of shares AT D 27 7,596 — — 7,596

Profit and total comprehensive income  FREF R LEIKHEZE
for the year

— — 187,827 187,827

Final 2021 dividend B —ERBEEER 11 — — (63,840) (63,840)
Interim 2022 dividend B _FRERE 11 — —  (117,040)  (117,040)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RIEZ-HF=A=+—H

kZB-__FMBE—H
Profit and total comprehensive income  FEPEF &k 2 HE K425
for the year

573,910 43,088 330,980 947,978

- - 162,759 162,759

Final 2022 dividend B _EREKRE 11 — - (74,732) (74,732)
Interim 2023 dividend ZEZI=FFRHEERER 11 - - (160,140)  (160,140)
At 31 March 2023 RIBEZ=F=A=+—H 573,910 43,088 258,867 875,865

The capital reserve of the Company represents the
excess of the then consolidated net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
capital reserve may be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors of the Company on
28 June 2023.

38.
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